Florida
I D E A IDEA Florida
- 5050 E 10th Ave.

~ Public Schools Tampa, FL 33619

Request For Proposals Addendum

Addendum: #1
Vendor Questions & Answers / Pre-Proposal recording

Date: 4/4/24

RFP-38-FLAUDIT-0524

Pre-proposal recording can be found here.
To: All Prospective Vendors

The following questions were sent in response to the referenced Solicitation for further
clarification. Questions and answers are listed below:

Question 1: Please provide copies of the most recent audited financial statements and single
audit.
Answer: Files attached.

Question 2: Is this a new audit or an ongoing engagement?
Answer: This audit is an ongoing engagement

Question 3: If ongoing, how long have you been engaged with the current auditor and is that
firm eligible for rehire?

Answer: The current auditor has been engaged for three years and is allowed to submit a
proposal.

Question 4: What have you budgeted for the services covered in the scope of the RFP?
Answer: $60,000.00 has been budgeted for the services covered in the scope of the RFP.

Question 5: If ongoing, what are the total fees paid to the current audit firm?

Answer: We are unable to disclose vendor pricing. In the event you would like to request open
records, we encourage you to visit our website at https://ideapublicschools.org/our-
story/financebudget/pcs/bids-rfps/ and reference the Open Records Request section for further
details.

Question 6: If ongoing, how many journal entries and/or audit adjustments have there been for
the last audit?

Answer: In the previous fiscal year, there were a total of 2,374 journal entries and of those, one
adjusting entry was received from auditors.
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Question 7: Do you have written procedures to document your control environment?
Answer: There are existing written procedures, however, there are some that are still in progress.

Question 8: If ongoing, why are you considering a change in auditors?
Answer: Our contract and engagement have termed out and are outsourcing to find the most
suitable firm for our organization.

Question 9: When will the trial balance and supporting schedules be ready for audit planning
and timing purposes?
Answer: The trial balance and supporting schedules are ready for auditors on August 9, 2024.

Question 10: What accounting system do you use and are there any other software or
applications significant to the financial reporting function?
Answer: The accounting software utilized by IDEA is Tyler Munis.

Question 11: Does the District plan on changing accounting software in the next three years?
Answer: At the moment we do not see the district making any changes to the accounting
software.

Question 12: What auditor attributes are most appreciated by the District?
Answer: Overall, auditors who demonstrate a combination of technical expertise, effective
communication, professionalism, and collaborative attitude are most appreciated by the District.

Question 13: Does the District have a preference to on-site or remote work?
Answer: Considering the efficiency and flexibility remote work offers, IDEA would prefer the
auditors to work remotely.

Question 14: Are records in digital or paper format?
Answer: All records are digital.

Question 15: We’d like to request a copy of IDEA Florida Inc.’s prior year audited financial
statements.
Answer: Files attached.

Question 16: We’d like to request the prior year fees for the financial statement audit, single
audit, and Form 990 preparation.
Answer: Please refer to the answer on question #5.

Question 17: For 2024 FY, Table 3 in the package has six locations while Table 2 has four.
What falls under the scope for FY 20247
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Answer: Four (4) campuses will be audited in FY 24 to include Hope, Victory, Bassett, and
River Bluff.

Question 18: For 2025 FY and 2026 FY what campuses will be covered?
Answer: FY 25 will include Hope, Victory, Bassett, River Bluff, and Lakeland (opening date
TBD) as specified in Table 2 of the RFP.

Question 19: The Auditor General website includes the FY2023 audit for Bassett and River
Bluff and the FY2022 audit for Hope and Victory. Could you provide a copy of the FY2023
audit for Hope and Victory?

Answer: Files attached.

Question 20: The RFP also requests a fee quote for the annual Form 990 for submission to the
IRS. Could you provide a copy of the latest Form 990 that has been filed for the organization?
Answer: Files attached.

Question 21: Per review of the latest audits on the Auditor General website, it appears that
federal sources exceed the $750,000 federal Single Audit threshold; however, it does not appear
that these audits were performed under the Uniform Guidance (i.e: they do not include the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA), the independent auditor’s report on
compliance for each major program and on internal control over compliance required by the
Uniform Guidance, or the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs). Is a separate reporting
package issued to meet the Single Audit requirements for the organization as a whole?

Answer: No, a separate reporting package is not issued to meet the Single Audit requirements
for the organization as a whole.

Question 22: The State of Florida has its own Single Audit requirements for funding that is
considered state financial assistance. Are the “School of Hope” funds received from the state
considered “state financial assistance” and, therefore, subject to the Florida Single Audit Act?
Answer: Yes, they are state financial assistance but are not considered single audit act.

Question 23: We currently have several charter school audits that are conducted in-person or
remotely or a combination of the two. Does the organization have any preferences with regard to
in-person or remote fieldwork?

Answer: Considering the efficiency and flexibility remote work offers, IDEA would prefer the
auditors to work remotely.

Question 24: Is the prior auditor being considered for re-appointment?
Answer: We are considering all proposals; we aim to evaluate each option thoroughly to ensure
the best fit for our organization's needs moving forward.
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Question 25: Could you please provide a copy of the June 30, 2023, audited financial statements
and accompanying 990 form?
Answer: Files attached.

Question 26: Please provide a brief summary of the accounting department personnel and their
relevant experience.

Answer:

Lupita Hinojosa (Accounting Managing Director)

Alejandro Quintero (Director of Accounting)

Martha Arellano (Director of Accounts Payable)

Priscilla Perez (Assistant Director of Accounts Payable)
Aybeth Martinez (Director of Payroll)

Jose Perez (Director of Procurement

Purchasing)

Chris Borthwick (Managing Director of Finance Compliance)
Paige Mcginty (Corporate Card Procurement Manager)

Question 27: Are there any auditing problems / difficulties we need to be made aware of?
Answer: We did not experience any difficulties during the prior year’s audit. Our contract and
engagement have termed out and are outsourcing to find the most suitable firm for our
organization.

Question 28: Do you have an audit committee or equivalent oversight by the Board?
Answer: Yes, IDEA has an internal audit committee.

Question 29: Is all of the accounting performed in one office, on one system? If not, how many
accounting systems and locations are involved?
Answer: Yes, Tyler Munis. We do have about 5 remote employees, but most are out of the RGV

HOQ.

Question 30: Is the fixed asset detail maintained in a fixed asset software system or on excel
spreadsheets?
Answer: The fixed assets are maintained in a fixed asset software system.

Question 31: Will you calculate and record the lease liabilities and right to use asset and related
amortization?
Answer: Yes, the lease software calculates it

Question 32: Do you typically prepare financial statements and footnotes or does the audit firm
prepare them?
Answer: The audit firm prepares the financial statements and footnotes.
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Question 33: Can you provide the prior year trial balance and audit adjustments, if any? Or give
an indication of the number of adjustments and a description of the entries, if any?

Answer: In the previous fiscal year, there were a total of 2,374 journal entries and of those, one
adjusting entry was received from auditors.

Question 34: May we please get a copy of the budget or any interim financial statements for the
current fiscal year?
Answer: Files attached.

Question 35: What is the expected timeline for audit fieldwork? Expected start and completion
date?

Answer: Field work, interim and final, scheduled for two weeks. Our timeline for fieldwork
kickoff is scheduled from August 12 through August 23. The final report is to be delivered on
September 13.

Question 36: What is your preference of how field work is performed (remote, in person, hybrid,
etc.)?

Answer: Considering the efficiency and flexibility remote work offers, IDEA would prefer the
auditors to work remotely.

Question 37: If possible, can you indicate the professional fees for 2023 or the number of hours
incurred on the engagement?
Answer: Please refer to the answer on question #5.

Question 38: Will you please provide copies of the two most recent audited basic financial
statements, independent auditor’s reports, and management letters?
Answer: Files attached.

Question 39: Will you please provide copies of the two most recent Forms 990 filed?
Answer: Files attached.

Question 40: Did the organization require additional auditing services outside the scope of the
audit engagements during the last two years? If so, what was the nature of the additional
services?

Answer: The organization did not require additional auditing services outside the scope of the
audit engagements.

Question 41: Does the organization have a mandatory audit firm or audit firm partner rotation?
If so, what is the requirement?
Answer: No, the organization does not have a mandatory audit firm partner rotation.
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Question 42: Are the prior year auditors included or excluded from the current RFP process?
Answer: We are considering all proposals, we aim to evaluate each option thoroughly to ensure
the best fit for our organization's needs moving forward.

Question 43: What is the reason for a potential change in independent auditors?
Answer: Our contract and engagement have termed out and are outsourcing to find the most
suitable firm for our organization.

Question 44: How many journal entries were proposed by the prior auditor in the two most
recent audits, if any?

Answer: Due to management change we do not know how many journal entries were
submitted in FY22. However, for FY23 we had one journal entry.

Question 45: What is the location for onsite fieldwork?
Answer: The location for onsite fieldwork would be in Weslaco RGV HQ.

ATTACHMENTS:

2021 Form 990 for IDEA Florida, Inc.

Duval 2023 Financial Statements

Florida 2023 Consolidated Financial Statements
Hillsborough 2023 Financial Statements

ideapublicschools.org
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FILE COPY

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax SN b 0047
Form 990 Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 202 1
ST p Do not enter s.ocml security numbe.rs on th.ls form as it may b-e made public. W
Internal Revenue Service | P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2021 andending JUN 30, 2022
B Check if C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:

[X]asnee’ | IDEA Florida, Inc.

E‘n‘."éée Doing business as 84-3519271

o Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number

e c/o IDEA Hope 5050 E. 10th Ave. 956-332-6311

oa™ City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code | G_Gross receipts § 28,549,811.

e’ _Tampa, FL 33619 H(a) Is this a group return

f5p"e- | £ Name and address of principal officer: Lizzette Reynolds for subordinates? [ Jves [XINo

s same as C above H(b) Are all subordinates included? DYes E] No
| Tax-exempt status: Izl 501(c)(3) |:| 501(c) ( )< (insert no.) [:l 4947(a)(1) or |:| 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions

J Website: > ideapublicschools.org/states/florida/

H(c) Group exemption number P>

K_Form of organization: Corporation [ ] Trust [ | Association [ ] Other B>

[ L Year of formation: 201 9| m State of legal domicile: F L

art || Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activites: LDEA Florida provides

tuition-free education to college-bound students in Florida.

Check this box P> |:] if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

®

g

g 2

2| 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 4

§ 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . . ... 4 4

ﬂ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2021 (Part V, line 2a) 5 >

E| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . ... 6 4

g 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0.

b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part | line 11 ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year

o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl line 1h) ... 8,920,816.| 28,549,811.

g| @ Program service revenue (Part VIl n€20) ... 0. 0.

| 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3,4, and 7d) ... ... ... 0. 0.

= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢c, 10c,and 11e¢) . 0. 0.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), line 12) ... 8,920,816. 28,549,811.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), lined) . 0. 0.

§ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 6,174,789.| 16,743,298.

2| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) ... ... ... .. 0's 0.

2 b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) B 0.

df 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11#24¢) 2,515,648.] 12,726,843.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 8,690,437.] 29,470,141.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ... 230,3 79. -920,330.

Beginning of Current Year End of Year

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 6,472,132.] 10,711,541.
21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 6,242,703. 10,595,546.
22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from lin€20 ... 229,429. 115,995,

ignature Bloc

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Electronically Filed
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here Lizzette Reynolds, Chair
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date g L] PTIN
Paid Barbara Murphy Bawbowa Murphy 05/12/2 3| sarampoyes [P01386215

Preparer |Firm'sname g Blazek & Vetterling

Firm'sEINp 76-0269860

Use Only |Firm'saddressp, 2900 Weslayan, Suite 200
Houston, TX 77027

Phoneno.713-439-5739

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

............................................................... Izl_xg [ INo

132001 12-00-21 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page2?
tatement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart Wl ... ‘... [z]_
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
IDEA Florida prepares students from underserved communities to be
successful college students and responsible citizens by providing
educational services to students. IDEA Florida serves students in
grades K-2 & 6 and will grow to serve grades K-12 when fully scaled.
2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? :l Yes No

DYes No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code' ) (Expensss $ 2 2 ’ 8 2 6 ’ 6 8 7 . including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
See Schedule O

4b (Code. ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revanue $ )

4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e _Total program service expenses P> 22,826,687.

Form 990 (2021)
132002 12-00-21 See Schedule O for Continuation(s)



Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271  Page3
[Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

10

1

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

b
21

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?

Il "Y65." Complote SEMBOIIIB A .uxvmumsmis e s s s T e s R e S S SRS AT
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions . ...
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? /f "Yes," complete SChedule C, Part | ..o
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? /f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule C, Part Il ...........................cc.ooiooooo .
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part |
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ...,
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f "Yes," complete
ol o 1 B o | -
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?

If " Yes," completarSchaaUlE. D, .Part IV, .....smswmiammmsmomsssammmmssimsssyimmessss s mm s s e s st e s pesiaes
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

or in quasi endowments? /f "Yes," complete SChedule D, Part V' .....................c.cccocoiw oo
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VI, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D,
PAREVI omirssisunasomvanmmmsnes s vy i o e e s o R e e o e o 5 S0 S5 S e B S
Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total

assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VIl .....................cccocooiioooooeooooeeeeee
Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X line 167 /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl .......................ccococoiv oo
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in

Part X, line 167 /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX ... o oo
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X .................
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? /f "Yes," complete
SCheaUIE D, Parts XI @NA XII ...............ccccccooooeoieeeeeeeeeee e e e et
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?

If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and Xll is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule E

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any

foreign organization? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 11and IV ...
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to

or for foreign individuals? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV ...
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,

column (A), lines 6 and 11e? /f "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ...
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines

1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete SCheAUIE G, Part Il ... oo

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"

COMPIBTE SCHEOIIE G, PAITIII' ....unvuss snsnamssssmunsssasssmssssmssnssassvmss ssissnsssnmses v s msassvasnosbsossiast sast 10 s i mmasasnssninammssliomsss

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f "Yes," complete Schedule H ......................cccocviiiiiiiiee
If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ...
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? /f "Yes. " complete Schedule | Parts [and Il oo

Yes | No

Eo T o T - - - o

10

11a| X

11b X

11c X

11d | X

11e | X

11f X

14a X

14b X

15 X

16 X

>

17

18

19

b Eo B

20a
20b

21 X

132003 12-09-21

Form 990 (2021)
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[Part IV] Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? /f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ...
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? /f "Yes," complete
SONOAUIGR; - ssvssmerssisrmims s 5 T S A Ao A AP A ST S A AR R R S S RS e T s
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schadilles. If "ING;" HOOINE 2EE) uuwesuunswssusmssss s s s s o e o Ao e s e s e e e om0
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exempt DONAS?
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? .
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | ...
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? /£ "Yes," complete
SCHETUIOL, PAILL  sovmomensmmrumms s i o T e e S s S SR oA s A S it
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ...........................c.c......
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? ¢
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV .......................................
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? /f
"Yes, " cOmMPIete SChEAUIE L, Part IV ................ooveiiiiiiiiniiiiiiisisiisrsssesssssinisssssssssessinsssissssessssnsnssssssessss ssssissstasessssnnssssssnsses
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule M ...
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? /f "Yes, " complete SChEAUIE M ...
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? /f "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part |
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? /f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE N; PAFUII' covuossssims s i s s S s mi i ais st Ao st s nmm s e ine S s s R i e i s S S
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | ...
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Ii, Ill, or IV, and
Palt V. IIBIT  ssssnvmsmsmmsmnensessmsmsss s s oms s e 5 S A S s s R S s 5
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? .
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ..................ccccoiiiiiieieiee
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete SCheAUIE R, Part V, lIN@ 2 .................ccoouoeeuueieeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e s e e st s e e e saneeeeanersneesannns
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ....................
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... ..o

g8

Yes | No

23 | X

24a X

24b

24c

24d

25a X

25b X

27 X

28a

28b

28c

31

3
T ] T P P

32

37 X

|&
»

[Part V] Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 16

Yes | No

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0

¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners?

1c | X

132004 12-09-21
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Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271  page5

[Part V] Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (.ontinved)

2a

b

3a

b
4a

5a

6a

0o T

TQ 20 o

12a

13

14a

15

16

17

Yes | No
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn 2a 5
If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? .. . 2 | X
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file, See instructions. .
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? /f "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ... 3b
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . . 4a X
If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country B>
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? . 5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . 5b X
If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5c
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? 6b
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ... 7b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
to file Form 82822 .. ... 7c X
If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e X
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . ... . . 71 X
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7g
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . 9a
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line12 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilites 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
Gross income from members or shareholders . 11a
Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) 11b
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during theyear ... |_1&
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . ... .. .. 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans
Enter the amount of reservesonhand ...
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? /f “No, " provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b
Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified person, or mine operator engage in any
activities that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 4953? . 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.

132005 12-09-21
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Governance, Management, and Disclosure. ro; each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any lineinthisPart VI . @_
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear 1a 4
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . . 1b 4
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? = 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing body? 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The governing body? ... 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? g | X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? /f "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule Q oo 9 X

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No," go to in€ 73 ...............oci oo | 12a X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b | X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe
0N Schedule O hoW thiS WAS TONE ......................c.oooo oo 12c | X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . 13 | X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . 15a | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable Ontity QUIING O YEAI? .. .............cocooouurmcceuersumscsuaresssssasssessmsssssassssssssossssssisesissasebisesssassssesssssesissssessassesnsssssesss 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's
exemprstatusiwith respect to:sUch affangememts?: .. . ..o s s e v s 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed P> None

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[_] own website [ Another's website X] Upon request (] other (explain on Schedule O)

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records P>
Brittany Perkins - 956-377-8000
2115 West Pike Blvd, Weslaco, TX 78596

132006 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)




Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271  page?
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."

® |ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
able compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® |ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

@ Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | . o ChF: f:’f::'o?;‘man one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week cificerand 4 cFautor iustes) from from related other
(list any % the organizations compensation
hours for | = B organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related g % 2 (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ = g’ gm 1099-NEC) and related
below § g 5 5 é;: 5 organizations
line) HHEHBEEISIE
(1) Julene Robinson 40.00
Executive Director - Tampa Bay 0.00 X 0. 238 .776: 7,468
(2) Adam Miller 40.00
Executive Director - Tampa Bay 0.00 X 0. 221.;991 ; 15,867.
(3) Simaran Bakshi 40.00
VP of Schools - Jacksonville 0.00 X 0 167,337. 13,486-
(4) Christa Thomas 40.00
VP of Schools - Tampa Bay 0.00 X 0 151,375« 310,507
(5) Jose De Leon 40.00
Executive Director - Jacksonville 0.00 X 0 128,450. 1.0, 730
(6) Janet Crenshaw 40.00
Director of Leader Development 0.00 X 0s 123,848. 9,456.
(7) Patricia Jackson 40.00
Principal in Residence 0.00 X 0 112,118. 10,220
(8) Lizzette Reynolds 5.00
Chair 0.00 |X X 0 0. 0:
(9) Nick Rhodes 2.00
Secretary 0.00 |X X 0 0 0s
(10) Christina Barker 100
Director 0.00 |X 0. 0. Ols
(11) Gary Chartrand 1. 00
Director 0.00 |X 0is 0 0.

132007 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271  Page8
5 Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
: Positi 4
Name and title Average — T il Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany | 5 the organizations compensation
hoursfor | 5| s organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
relatec_i g2 2 (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations é g g E 1099-NEC) and related
below Elelsl]E 7 gl s organizations
S S > 0./ 1,143,895.] 77,734.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, SectionA > [0 0. 0.
d Total(addlinestbandtc) ... ... | 2 0./ 1,143,895.| 77,734.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization P> 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH INQIVIGUAI  .........................oo oo 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ................................ 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEFSON «-.oooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A)

Name and business address

(B)

Description of services

(C)
Compensation

IPS Enterprises,

2115 West Pike Blvd, Weslaco, TX 78596 Management services 11,249,585.
G3 Life Applications, Inc. fter school care
2000 E 12th Ave, Ste 5327, Tampa, FL 33675 rograms 321,964.
Relay Graduate School of Education
40 W 20th St, New York, NY 10011 Leadership training 107,500.
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization P> 3
Form 990 (2021)
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| Eart !lil Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded
function revenue |business revenue| from tax under
sections 512 - 514
12 1 a Federated campaigns . . 1a
o b Membershipdues 1b
- ¢ Fundraisingevents ic
.g d Related organizations 1d
@ e Government grants (contributions) |1e 28,009,514,
,E f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
E similar amounts not included above | 1f 540,297,
'g g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 19 $ 2 ' 136,
S h Total. Addlinesta-1f ... > 28,549,811,
Business Code
82
c b
b3 c
£ d
™
o e
a f All other program service revenue .
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f .. ... B
3  Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) | 2
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds 3
5 Royalties ... B
(i) Real (i) Personal
6 a Grossrents 6a
b Less: rental expenses | 6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6¢c
d Netrentalincomeor (10SS) ... »
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory | 7a
b Less: cost or other basis
o and sales expenses 7b
§ c Gainor(oss) ... .
& d Net gain or (loss) ... | 4
_g:": 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
o including $ of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
PartiV,line18 . ... 8a
b Less: direct expenses . ... 8b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events ... | 2
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV Ine19 . cionrmmummammmpans 9a
b Less: direct expenses 9b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities ... | 2
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ... 103
b Less:costofgoodssold ... . 1
¢ _Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ... »
Business Code
g 11 a
5 b
g c
é d Allotherrevenue ... ...
e Total. Addlines11a-11d ... »
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... ... > 28,549,811, 0. 0. 0

132009 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)



reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here [:] if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 page10
rm'lXﬁ_Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e(Q) P (B) (©) JD)- :
penses rogram service Management and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part 1V, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 619,405. 535,689. 83,716.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ...
7 Other salaries and wages 12,;671;150.] 10,896,020 1.,775;130;
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 482,773. 409,629. 73,144.
9 Other employee benefits 2,146,296. 1,930,580 215,716
10 Payrolltaxes ... 823,674. 708,440. 115, 234.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management ... 320,698. 320,698.
B LBGAL......csmssessmsmissmmestimm s 86,693. 47,322. 39,371,
c Accounting 2,800. 2,800.
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees ..
g Other. (Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenseson Sch 0.)| 1,924 ,261. 241,519, 1,682;742.
12 Advertising and promotion 1,337,018 401,688. 935,330
13 Officeexpenses 2,184,305.] 1,939,393, 244,912.
14 Information technology 362,154, 362,134. 20,
15 Royalties ...
16 Occupancy ... 2,555,474.] 1,972,614. 582,860.
17 Travel 816,114. 360,757. 455,357,
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 60,900. 60,900.
20 Interest 24,000. 24,000.
21 Payments to affiliates ...
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 304,619. 288 ,221. 16,398.
23 Insurance ... 358,938. 358,938.
24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a Program/other supplies 1,001,812; 931,773 70,039,
b After school programs 636,991. 636,991.
¢ Education materials 634,750. 634,750.
d Repairs & maintenance 106,502. 106,502
e All other expenses 8,814. 2,827 5987
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1through24e | 29,470,141.| 22,826,687. 6,643,454. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

132010 12-09-21
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Page 11

| Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

132011 12-09-21

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-nondinterestbearing ... ... 1,151,639.] 1 581,126.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 2,716,472.| 3 684,082.
4  Accounts receivable, net ... 2,438,962.| 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ... 6
@ | 7 Notesand loans receivable, net . . . 7
§ 8 Inventories for saleoruse . 8
< | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges ... 14,209.] 9 81,468.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 3,616,162,
b Less: accumulated depreciaton 10b 304,619. 0. 10¢c 3,311,543.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities ... 11
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line11 13
14 Intangibleassets ... 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 150,850.| 15 6,053 ;322
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line33) ... 6,472,132.] 16 10,711,541.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,701,848.| 17 1,794,125.
18  Grants PaVable ...ommsmmansnrss s S 18
19 Deferred revenue ... . 3,340,855.] 19 1,488,000.
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
» | 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
"5‘ controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
= | 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 1,200,000.| 23 1,200,000.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
Of SChedUle D . . 0.] 25 6,113,421.
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 6,242,703.| 26 10,595,546.
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here P>
8 and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
&§ | 27 Netassets without donor restrictions 224,152.]| 27 -903,418.
@ | 28  Net assets with donor restrictions 5,277.| 28 1,019,413.
g Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here P> E]
w and complete lines 29 through 33.
z 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... 29
® | 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
& | 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
B |32 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances 229,429.| 32 115,995.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... .. 6,472,132.] a3 10,711,541.
Form 990 (2021)



art Xl [ Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI|

Form990f2021) IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 page12

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) 1 28,549,811.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 2 29,470,141.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromline 1 3 -920,330.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (&) 4 229,429.
5 Netunrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 Investmentexpenses ... 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) . 9 806,896.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
COMMN (B) oo 10 115,995,

Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII

Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash IX] Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? .
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
@ Separate basis [:] Consolidated basis |:] Both consolidated and separate basis
c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2c| X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Actand OMB Circular A133? | e 3a| X

b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ... 3b| X

Form 990 (2021)
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SCHEDULE A

OMB No. 1545-0047

Public Charity Status and Public Support

(Form 990) i o . s o :
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
intesrial.Revien i Setvion P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

| Part | | Reason for Public Char ity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

L]
]
]

A ON =

0 00000

10

1 [
12 []

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)i).

A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(Aiii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a [:] Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b E] Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c D Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e l:] Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type IlI

f Enter the number of supported organizations
Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization "ﬁV) ]Sr“" U’Iglar?”;h“" n:Snexd? (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
organization (described on lines 1-10 B

support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) Yes No RITSIER B {

Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 132021 01-04-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021



Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page2
| Eart |I | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lIl. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IIl.)
Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P> (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 1079786.| 8920816.[28549811./38550413.

2 Taxrevenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Addlines 1through3 1079786.| 8920816.28549811.38550413.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

column(f
6_Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 8550413.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p» (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
7 Amounts from line 4 1079786.| 8920816.[28549811.[38550413.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources 4,637. 4,637.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part VI.)

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 38555050.

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 |

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, Check thisS DOX aNd STOP MOI@ ... ... ettt B @
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) ... ... ... ... 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .. [ ]

b 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ...
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2021. |f the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . =3 D
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions
Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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upport Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p» (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page3
[Part ] S

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Taxrevenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 . .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b ...

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from line 6.
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p» (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part VI.) -...........
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

Check this DOX aNd SEOP MeIe .. o i ieiiiiiieeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii.s »[ |
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .. ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A Partlll line 15 ... 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2021 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... ... ... .. 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part lll, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... .. .
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... | 4 [:l
132023 01-04-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021




Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page4
Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? jf "No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1
2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? /f "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? /f "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes, " and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part |, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

6a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed, (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? /f "Yes," provide detail in
Part Vi. 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

g &

regard to a substantial contributor? jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. Sb
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part V. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? /f "Yes, " answer line 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

132024 01-04-21 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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[PartIV] Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? /f "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide

detail in Part V. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? /f "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? /f "Yes," explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
jzation 2

. .
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

jzation(s) 1

—the supported organiza
Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? /f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a D The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b [_—_] The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
¢ [_] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructiong),
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? /f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. | _2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? /f "Yes," explain in
Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? /f "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part V. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? /f "Yes. " ibe in Part VI ization in thi d. 3b
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| PartV

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1

E Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part VI). See instructions.

All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

a DN =

D ||| N |-

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

(2]

7

Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

1d

oo 0o |T |

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

(explain in detail in Part VI):

2

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

(4]

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w

4

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

5
6
7

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Section C - Distributable Amount

® N O |0 |

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

a DN (=

|0 | (W IN |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

~

D Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

instructions).

132026 01-04-22
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|PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity
Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets
Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part V1)
Other distributions (gescribe in Part VI). See instructions.
Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details jn Part VI). See instructions.
9 Distributable amount for 2021 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
(i) (ii) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Unde;;i:gg;tlons Ag::::’;’:?ggz 4

~N O | | (WD

® N O |0 s W

0

1 Distributable amount for 2021 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2021 (reason-
able cause required - explajn in Part VI). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2021

From 2016

From 2017

From 2018

From 2019

From 2020

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2021 distributable amount

Carryover from 2016 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2021 from Section D,

line 7: $

a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b _Applied to 2021 distributable amount
c_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2021, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2021. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2022. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2019

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

T ™o a0 |T|®

o} 08

o Q[0 [T |

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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a Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,

Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 1545:0047

(Form 990) P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-PF.
P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 202 1

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization
Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

00000

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

[:] For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

l:l For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), Il, and Ill.

E] For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Don’'t complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year . . > $

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it must
answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify
that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

LLHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990) (2021)
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Page 2

Name of organization

IDEA Florida,

INec.

Employer identification number

84-3519271

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

1 | Florida Department of Education

325 W Gaines St

$

26,890,104.

Tallahassee,

FL 32399

Person |X]
Payroll |:]
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

2 | U.S. Department of Agriculture

1400 Independence Ave SW

$

810,106.

Washington, DC 20250

Person @
Payroll ]
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll :l
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll ]
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person D

Payroll D

Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

123452 11-11-21
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2021)

Page 3

Name of organization

IDEA Florida,

Inc.

Employer identification number

84-3519271

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) (©
No. (b) . (d)
FMV
from Description of noncash property given (or eshrnate) Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
(c)
No.
" (o) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given ; ; Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
(c)
No.
- (b) : FMV (or estimate) (d) i
from Description of noncash property given ) , Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
(c)
No. (b) ; (d)
FMV timat
from Description of noncash property given (or e ".na e) Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
(c)
No. (b) ; (d)
FMV
from Description of noncash property given !or estlmate) Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
(c)
No.
2 s ) " FMV (or estimate) (@ .
from Description of noncash property given : ; Date received
Part | (See instructions.)

123453 11-11-21
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2021)

Page 4

Name of organization

IDEA Florida, Inc.

Employer identification number

84-3519271

'PEF!'III Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations

completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) > $

Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
Igr:rrtnl (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
g:rm (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
g:rTl (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
If;:r“ (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
123454 11-11-21
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements DM, Ll Uk
(Form 990) P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 202 1
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

[Part]l | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

a s WN =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend ofyear . . ... ...

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value atend of year
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . D Yes l:] No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

IMPErmissible Private DENETIE? et eiiiiis |:| Yes D No

[Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

Qo0 oo

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

D Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) D Preservation of a historically important land area

I:] Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure

[:] Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements ... | 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements | 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin(@ . .. 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure

listed in the National Register . 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located p>

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? E] Yes D No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

» ___

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

»$

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170MV@)B)? [ Jves [INo

In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements.
ganizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xl the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, line 1

(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X » $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 |
b _Assetsincluded in EOIMI990, PARX  .o.cwurommmmnmmmareasas e s s s | )
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2021

132051 10-28-21



Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 page2
art Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets ,ntinued)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
a [:] Public exhibition d [:] Loan or exchange program
b D Scholarly research e I:] Other
[ D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIll.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ... l:] Yes |:] No

l Part IV I Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a |s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? D Yes [:| No

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:

Amount

Beginning balance e
Additions during the year 1d

DistributionsiQUtNGINEIVEAE .o A e A o T s e R ie
ENdingDAlANCE! . v e e e
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? E] Yes [:’ No
b _If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIIl ...
[Part V[ Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

- 0o a o0

1a Beginning of year balance

Contributions .
Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
Grants or scholarships .. ...

Other expenditures for facilities

o a0 T

and programs

-

Administrative expenses
g End of year balance
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment P> %
b Permanent endowment p> %
¢ Term endowment P %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizations
(ii) Related organizations
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b

4 Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
| Part Yj Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Land

b Buidings
¢ Leasehold improvements

d Equipment 3;616;162., 304,619.| 3,311,543.

O - —_—"
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (q) must equal Form 990. Part X. column (B in€ 10C) oo > 3,311,543.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page3

] Part VII| Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security)

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives ...

(2) Closely held equity interests
(3) Other

A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

G)

(H)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) p»
Part VIII| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) p»
|Part IX| Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(1) Deposits

27,078.

(209 Right-of-use assets

6,026,244.

—3)
(4)
(5)
6
(7)
__(8)
(9)
Total..{Column:(b)imust equalEorm.990. BartX. col (B NNOTB]. ...ccuvisusuivssssssnss ssnisss s i s s oo s sy B 6:;.053.;322:
Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) _Federal income taxes
@ Due to affiliate 248,143.
@) Operating lease liability 5,865,278.
(4)
(6)
(6)
@)
(8)
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, Ol (B) i€ 25.) woovoooooooiooioooioiooooooioi B 6,113,421.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part X, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl__ .. E]

132053 10-28-21

Schedule D (Form 990) 2021



84-3519271 page4

Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. -
iation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 | 28,549,811.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements .
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VI, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b

c Recoveries of prioryeargrants ... 2c

d Other (Describein Part XIIL) . 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a

| 2e 0.

3 | 28,549,811.

b Other (Describe in Part XIIl.)

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (7]

4c 0.

5 | 28,549,811.

his must equal Form 990, Part |, line 12.
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per R

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

eturn.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

1| 29,470,141.

a Donated services and use of facilities ... 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
€ OFNEIIOSSES ... ... ittt e e e e e s et eae st e e aeaseeeresaenens 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 2d
e

Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b | 4a

2e 0.

3 | 29,470,141.

b Other (Describe in Part XIll.)

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b

4c 0.

5 | 29,470,141.

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (Th: 78 T8 svwsessssssmpcnimsssssamessss
| Part XIII| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI|,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

132054 10-28-21

Schedule D (Form 990) 2021



SCHEDULE E Schools OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 202 1
Part IV, line 13, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271
[PartT |
YES | NO
1 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter,
bylaws, other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? q X
2 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures,
catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 2 X
3 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy on its primary publicly accessible Internet
homepage at all times during its taxable year in a manner reasonably expected to be noticed by visitors to the
homepage, or through newspaper or broadcast media during the period of solicitation for students, or during the
registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of the general
community it serves? If "Yes," please describe. If "No," please explain. If you need more space, use Partil 3 X
The nondiscriminatory policy is published on the school's
website and solicitation advertisements.
4 Does the organization maintain the following?
a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? . . . 4a | X
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory basis? 4 | X
c Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 4c | X
d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? 4d | X
If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part Il.
5 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:
a Students’ rights or privileges? 5a X
b ADMISSIONS PONCIES? e 5b X
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? Sc X
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? 5d X
e Educational POCIES? . e 5e X
T USe Of faCIltI®S? e 5f X
g AIBtic PrOGramS? | 5g X
h Other extracurricular aCtivIties? e 5h X
If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part |l.
6a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? . 6a | X
b Has the organization’s right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 6b X
If you answered "Yes" on either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part |I.
7 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through
4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," explainon Part Il ... ... 7 X
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule E (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule E (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 page2
art Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part |, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as
applicable. Also provide any other additional information.

Line 6 - Explanation of Government Financial Aid:

The organization is an open enrollment charter school, which receives

substantial support from the Florida Department of Education as well as

support from the U.S. Department of Agriculture and the U.S. Department of

Education.

132062 10-18-21 Schedule E (Form 990) 2021



SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Department of the Treasury ’ Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271
|Partl | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Ill to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
!:] First-class or charter travel D Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[:J Travel for companions D Payments for business use of personal residence
l___] Tax indemnification and gross-up payments D Health or social club dues or initiation fees
|:] Discretionary spending account [:l Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part lll to explain . . . . 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? . . .. . .. 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill.
D Compensation committee D Written employment contract
:] Independent compensation consultant D Compensation survey or study
D Form 990 of other organizations l:] Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 4a X
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b X
c Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c X
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Il
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorganization? 5a X
b Anyrelated organization? 5b X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part Il
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
@ TRE OFGANIZALION? | . e 6a X
b Any related Organization? e 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Ill.
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
notdescribedion lines:5iand 67 “Yes;" descrbein PArEI . ...y vsmmmms s e s s s 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part il . . 8 X
9 If "Yes" online 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section §3.4958-6(0) 7 ... .o o 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2021

IDEA Florida,

TRc.

84-3519271

Page 2

[ Part Il J Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC and/or 1099-NEC | (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable |(E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation
compensation other deferred benefits (B)()-(D) in column (B)
(A) Name and Title (i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other compensation reported as deferred
compensation incentive reportable on prior Form 990
compensation compensation

(1) Julene Robinson (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
Executive Director - Tampa Bay )] 180,554. 57,889. 333. 7,468. 0. 246 ,244. 0.
(2) Adam Miller (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
Executive Director - Tampa Bay (ii) 159,701. 61,957. 333 6,493. 9,374. 237,858. 0.
(3) simaran Bakshi (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
VP of Schools - Jacksonville (ii) 131,379. 35,625, 333. 5,386. 8,100. 180,823. 0.
(4) Christa Thomas (i) 0. 0. 0 0. 0. 0. 0.
VP of Schools - Tampa Bay Giy| 134,272. 17,103 0. 5,046. 5,461. 161,882. 0.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)
Schedule J (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc.

84-3519271 Page 3

| Part IIIJ Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Part I, Line 3:

IDEA Florida, Inc. (IDEA Florida) executed a management services

agreement with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (IPS), a related tax-exempt

organization that supports charter schools within the IDEA network,

including IDEA Florida. IPS provides IDEA Florida with School

Management Services, which include the provision of teachers,

administrators, and other staff. Therefore, IPS employs and pays all

staff except for the school principals which are employed directly by

IDEA Florida. IPS bills IDEA Florida for contracted services and a

management fee.

Compensation of the organization's Executive Director and VP of Schools

positions is determined by IPS using compensation data from similar

positions in other charter schools.

132113 11-02-21
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- OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ -

(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 202 1

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

Form 990, Part III, Line 4a, Program Service Accomplishments:

IDEA Public Schools believes each and every child can go to college.

Since 2000, IDEA Public Schools has grown from a small school with 150

students to a national network of tuition-free K-12 public charter

schools in the United States. The network currently serves over 80,000

college-bound students in 143 schools. Through small learning groups

and daily access to technology, every student learns at the level and

speed just right for them. Teachers bring subject matter expertise and

an unwavering commitment to set each student on a path to success.

Parents, teachers, and administrators work as a team to help each

student reach their full potential.

For the 2021-2022 academic year, IDEA Florida served 882 students

across two campuses in the Tampa Bay area. The schools opened with

grades K-2 & 6 and will grow to serve grades K-12 when fully scaled.

IDEA Florida opened two additional schools in the Jacksonville area for

the 2022-2023 academic year.

Form 990, Part V, Line 2a, Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings:

IDEA Florida, Inc. (IDEA Florida) executed a management services

agreement with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (IPS), a related tax-exempt

organization that supports charter schools within the IDEA network,

including IDEA Florida. IPS provides IDEA Florida with School

Management Services, which include the provision of teachers,

administrators, and other staff. Therefore, IPS employs and pays all

staff except for the school principals which are employed directly by
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2021

132211 11-11-21




Schedule O (Form 990) 2021 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

IDEA Florida. IPS bills IDEA Florida for contracted services and a

management fee.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 3:

IDEA Florida, Inc. (IDEA Florida) executed a management services agreement

with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (IPS), a related tax-exempt organization that

supports charter schools within the IDEA network, including IDEA Florida.

IPS provides IDEA Florida with School Management Services, which include

the provision of teachers, administrators, and other staff. IPS bills IDEA

Florida for contracted services and a management fee. IPS employs and pays

all staff except for the school principals which are employed directly by

IDEA Florida. Key employees and highest compensated employees of IDEA

Florida are compensated through this arrangement as follows:

Executive Director - Tampa Bay, Julene Robinson: $246,244

Executive Director - Tampa Bay, Adam Miller: $237,858

VP of Schools - Jacksonville, Simaran Bakshi: $180,823

VP of Schools - Tampa Bay, Christa Thomas: $161,882

Executive Director - Jacksonville, Jose De Leon: $139,180

Director of Leader Development, Janet Crenshaw: $133,304

Principal in Residence, Patricia Jackson: $122,338

IPS paid additional staff a combined total of $10,027,956 in compensation

for services performed for IDEA Florida.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, line 11b:

Form 990 is provided to the Board prior to filing with the IRS.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 1l2c:

The Board of IDEA Florida, Inc. monitors potential conflicts of interest.
132212 11-11-21 Schedule O (Form 990) 2021




Schedule O (Form 990) 2021 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15:

The organization's Executive Directors are employed by IPS Enterprises,

Inc. (IPS) under a management services agreement. Therefore, the

organization does not determine the compensation of these individuals.

Form 990, Part VI, Section C, Line 19:

Upon request.

Form 990, Part IX:

IDEA Florida, Inc. (IDEA Florida) executed a management services

agreement with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (IPS), a related tax-exempt

organization that supports charter schools within the IDEA network,

including IDEA Florida. IPS provides IDEA Florida with School

Management Services, which include the provision of teachers,

administrators, and other staff. Therefore, IPS employs and pays all

staff except for the school principals which are employed directly by

IDEA Florida. IPS bills IDEA Florida for contracted services and a

management fee. Under this arrangement, compensation related expenses

reported in Lines 5, 7, 8, 9, and 10 of Part IX, totaling $16,743,298,

were paid in part by IPS and in part by IDEA Florida:

IPS: $16,259,167

IDEA Florida: $484,131

A management fee of $320,698, reported in Line lla, was paid to IPS for

the management services performed for IDEA Florida.

Form 990, Part XI, line 9, Changes in Net Assets:

Prior year audit adjustments 806,896.
132212 11-11-21 Schedule O (Form 990) 2021




SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

P> Attach to Form 990.

P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2021

Department of the Treasury - 3 " % % o"en to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271
Part | Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()

Name, address, and EIN (if applicable)
of disregarded entity

Primary activity

Legal domicile (state or

foreign country)

Total income

End-of-year assets Direct controlling

entity

IPS Florida LLC - 88-3404181

2115 West Pike Blvd

Weslaco, TX 78596

upport services

Texas

.[[DEA Florida, Inc.

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related tax-exempt

Partli organizations during the tax year.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (€ M s9cuon(?1)z(bx1a)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile (state or Exempt Code Public charity Direct controlling onivolled
of related organization foreign country) section status (if section entity entity?
501(c)(3)) Yes No

IPS Enterprises, Inc, - 84-4633153
2115 West Pike Blvd IDEA Public
Weslaco, TX 78596 Management Texas 501(c)(3) Line 12a, I chools X
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule R (Form 990) 2021

132161 11-17-21  LHA



Schedule R (Form990) 2021  IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page 2

Part il Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f (9) (h) (i) () (k)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity d;;?l;'la Direct controlling | Predominant income Share of total Share of Disproportionate Code V-UBI  |General or[Percentage
of related organization (atateoF entity ﬁrelated, unrelated, income end-of-year alocations | ,@mount in box  |managing| ownership
foreign EXCl Uded from tax under assets 20 of Schedule |-Rartner?

country) sections 512-514) Yes | No | K-1 (Form 1065) [yes|No

Part IV

Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a)

Name, address, and EIN
of related organization

(b)
Primary activity

(c) (d) (e)

Legal domicile | Direct controlling | Type of entity
(state or entity (C corp, S corp,
foreign or trust)
country)

()

Share of total
income

(9)
Share of
end-of-year
assets

(h) (i)
Section

Percentage 512(b)("13)
i trolled
ownership czfr'm?y =
Yes | No

132162 11-17-21

Schedule R (Form 990) 2021



Schedule R (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page 3

PartV  Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note: Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts Il lll, or IV of this schedule. Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest, (ii) annuities, (iii) royalties, or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a X
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b X
¢ Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c X
d Loans or loan guarantees to or for related organization(s) 1d X
e Loans orloan guarantees by related Organization(S) te | X
£ Dividends from related Organization(S) f X
g Sale ofassets to related organization(S) ... | 19 X
h Purchase of assets from related Organization(S) e 1h X
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) ... . 1i X
j Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(S) 1j X
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) k| X
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l X
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) .. . . ISR O USRS im| X
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in | X
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 10 | X
p Reimbursement paid to related organization(s) for EXPENSES | e p | X
g Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for XPENSES e 1q X
r Other transfer of cash or property to related Organization(S) r| X
s _Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s) ... 1s | X
2 If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.
@ (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)
(1)
2
3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

132163 11-17-21 Schedule R (Form 990) 2021



Schedule R (Form 990) 2021  IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Page 4

Part VI Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross revenue)
that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.

(a) (b) (c) (d) A('eez” (U] (9) (h) (i) 1) (k)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile Pretlioménant irllcoré\e pasréqers;(:sﬁc Share of Share of D'tsg:‘naggr Code V-éJBI - General or|Percentage
i i related, unrelated, (¢ ? . amount in box 20|managing i
of entity (state or foreign excﬁu ded from tax under |2t %) 4 total end-of-year allocations?| o't Schedule K-1 |2artner? ownership
country) sections 512-514)  |yes|No income assets Yes|No| (Form 1065) |yes|No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2021

132164 11-17-21



Schedule R (Form 990) 2021 IDEA Florida, Inc. 84-3519271 Pages
Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

Form 990, Schedule R, Part II:

IDEA Florida, Inc. (IDEA Florida) executed a management services

agreement with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (IPS), a related tax-exempt

organization that supports charter schools within the IDEA network,

including IDEA Florida. IPS provides IDEA Florida with School

Management Services, which include the provision of teachers,

administrators, and other staff. Therefore, IPS employs and pays all

staff except for the school principals which are employed directly by

IDEA Florida. IPS bills IDEA Florida for contracted services and a

management fee.

132165 11-17-21 Schedule R (Form 990) 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff (the “Schools”), divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Schools’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Schools, as of
June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Schools and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Schools are intended to present the financial
position and change in financial position of only that portion of the governmental activities and each
major fund of IDEA Florida, Inc. that is attributable to the transactions of the Schools. They do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of IDEA Florida, Inc. as of June 30, 2023 and
the changes in its financial position and budgetary comparisons, where applicable, for the year ended
June 30, 2023 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

SOUTH FLORIDA BUSINESS JOURNAL

KMCcpa.com | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 ﬂ
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Special
Revenue Fund on pages 4 through 7 and 23 through 24, respectively, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
28, 2023, on our consideration of the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Our discussion and analysis of IDEA Bassett’s and IDEA River Bluff's (the “Schools”) financial
performance provides an overview of the Schools’ financial activities for the year ended June 30,
2023. Normally, comparative information is presented for Management’s Discussion and Analysis
but since this is the initial year of the Schools’ operation and no financial statements for the
Schools’ financial statements were previously prepared, no comparative data has been presented.
Please read this section in conjunction with the Schools’ financial statements, which immediately
follow this discussion.

Financial Highlights
The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended June 30, 2023:
e The Schools’ total liabilities exceeded its assets at June 30, 2023 by $ 1,608,217 (net deficit).

e The Schools’ total revenues were $ 20,214,777 primarily consisting of $ 17,592,701 from
general revenues including FTE revenues and state money from the Department of
Education and $ 2,618,602 from operating grants, capital grants, and contributions. The
Schools’ expenses for the year were $ 21,849,500. Net position for the year decreased by
$1,634,723.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Schools’ basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements.
This report also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements:

The government-wide financial statements, which consist of the following two statements, are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Schools’ finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business:

e The statement of net position presents information on all the Schools’ assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Schools are improving or deteriorating.

e The statement of activities presents information showing how the Schools’ net position
changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements include all governmental activities that are principally
supported by grants and entitlements from the state for full-time equivalent funding. The Schools
do not have any business-type activities. The governmental activities of the Schools primarily
include instruction and instructional support services.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this report.



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Fund financial statements:

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Schools only have one category of funds -
governmental funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Schools’ near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Schools’ near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Schools maintain several individual governmental funds. The General Fund, Special Revenue
Fund and Capital Projects Fund are considered to be the Schools’ major funds.

A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budgets.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 of this report.

Notes to basic financial statements:

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to basic financial
statements can be found on pages 14 through 22 of this report.

Other information:

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Schools’ General Fund and Special
Revenue Fund adopted budgets to actual results. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 23 and 24 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position.



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued)

The following table reflects the condensed government-wide statements of net position as of June
30, 2023:

IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Net Position (Deficit)

2023

Current Assets S 4,896,224
Noncurrent Assets 9,977,952
Total assets 14,874,176
Current Liabilities 5,802,201
Noncurrent Liabilities 10,680,192
Total liabilities 16,482,393

Net Position (deficit):
Net investment in capital assets 1,230,930
Unrestricted (2,839,147)
Total net position (deficit) S  (1,608,217)

A portion of the Schools’ net position reflect its investment in capital assets, less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Schools use these capital assets to provide
services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Schools’ investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt (if any), it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used are classified as restricted assets. As of June 30,
2023, the Schools had no restricted assets.

As reflected below, the net position is showing a decrease of $ 1,634,723 for the year ended June
30, 2023 as summarized in the following table:

IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Changes in Net Position

2023

Revenues:
General revenues S 17,596,175
Program revenues 2,618,602
Total revenues 20,214,777

Expenses:
Instruction 6,895,965
Instructional support services 11,367,540

Operation of non-instructional

services 3,585,995
Total expenses 21,849,500
Change in net position S (1,634,723)



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Schools’ Funds

As noted earlier, the Schools use fund accounting to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The focus of the Schools’ governmental funds
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the Schools’ financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance, if any, may serve as a useful measure of the Schools’ net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The 2022-2023 budget was amended at the end of the fiscal year to update anticipated revenues
and expenditures.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets: The Schools’ investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2023 was $ 9,977,952, net
of accumulated depreciation and amortization. This investment in capital assets is composed of a
right of use building and equipment, construction in progress, furniture and equipment, and
vehicles. A more detailed analysis is provided in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt: At June 30, 2023, the Schools had outstanding debt of $5,388,037. A more
detailed analysis is provided in Notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors for 2023-2024

Total funding for capital outlay is expected to increase slightly in the next year, largely offset by
reduced ESSER. Given student enrollment increases from 737 to 1418 in 2023-2024 due to rising
grade levels, the overall effect will be a significant increase in total FEFP revenues.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of IDEA Bassett’s and IDEA River
Bluff’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to IDEA Florida,
Inc. 9321 W. Sam Houston Parkway South, Houston, TX 77099.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2023

Current Assets:
Cash
Due from government agencies
Due from management company

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues
Debt
Leases

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Line of credit
Leases
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Position (Deficit):
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position (deficit)

$

3,716,207
913,198

266,819

4,896,224

9,977,952
9,977,952

14,874,176

1,540,092
807,147
95
638,037

2,816,830

5,802,201

4,750,000

5,930,192
10,680,192

16,482,393

1,230,930

(2,839,147)

(1,608,217)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

8



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Functions/Programs:
Governmental activities:
Regular instruction
Student support services
Instruction related technology
Staff training
General and
administrative services
Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation
Fiscal services
Community services
Food services
Central services
Debt service
Interest expense

Total governmental
activities

Governmental
Activities

Program Revenues Net Revenues

Charges Operating Capital (Expenses) and
for Grants and Grants and Change in

Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Net Position
S 6,895,965 $ - S 1,638,279 S - S (5,257,686)
827,737 - - - (827,737)
294,022 - - - (294,022)
3,305 - - - (3,305)
6,397,659 - - - (6,397,659)
3,844,817 - - 374,044 (3,470,773)
1,351,317 - - - (1,351,317)
299,777 - - - (299,777)
28,474 - - - (28,474)
1,208,601 - 606,279 - (602,322)
4,320 - - - (4,320)
183,874 - - - (183,874)
509,632 - - - (509,632)
$ 21,849,500 $ - $ 2244558 S 374,044 (19,230,898)

General revenues:

FTE nonspecific revenues and Schools of Hope Funding 17,592,701
Miscellaneous revenues 3,474
Total general revenues 17,596,175
Change in net position (1,634,723)
Net position, July 1, 2022 26,506
Net position (Deficit), June 30, 2023 S (1,608,217)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

Assets:
Cash

Due from government agencies
Due from management company

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total assets

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows and fund

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Fund Fund Fund Total

3,716,207 - - 3,716,207
913,198 - - 913,198
266,819 - - 266,819
4,896,224 - - 4,896,224
1,540,092 - - 1,540,092
807,147 - - 807,147
95 - - 95
2,347,334 - - 2,347,334
2,548,890 - - 2,548,890
2,548,890 - - 2,548,890
4,896,224 - - 4,896,224

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Net Position:

Governmental fund balances:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets S
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Liabilities not payable with current available resources
are not reported as fund liabilities in the governmental
fund statements. All liabilities both current and
long-term, are reported in the government-wide

statements.

Debt
Leases

Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities

12,886,652

(2,908,700)

$ 2,548,890

9,977,952

(5,388,037)
_(8,747,022)

$  (1,608,217)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:
State sources
Federal sources
Local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Regular Instruction
Student support services
Instruction related technology
Staff training
General and
administrative services
Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation
Fiscal services
Community services
Food services
Central services
Professional services
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal payments on debt
Principal payments on leases
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Debt proceeds
Lease proceeds

Total other financing sources

Net changes in
fund balances

Fund Balances (Deficit), July 1, 2022
Fund Balances, June 30, 2023

$

s

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects

Fund Fund Fund Total
17,592,701 § - S 374,044 S 17,966,745
- 2,244,558 - 2,244,558
3,474 - - 3,474
17,596,175 2,244,558 374,044 20,214,777
6,569,679 326,286 - 6,895,965
609,363 218,374 - 827,737
241,669 52,353 - 294,022
3,305 - - 3,305
6,220,395 130,055 - 6,350,450
968,585 69,873 374,044 1,412,502
502,553 505,844 - 1,008,397
299,777 - - 299,777
28,474 - - 28,474
264,784 941,773 - 1,206,557
4,320 - - 4,320
183,874 - - 183,874
10,955,270 - - 10,955,270
561,963 - - 561,963
2,029,910 - - 2,029,910
509,632 - - 509,632
29,953,553 2,244,558 374,044 32,572,155
(12,357,378) - - (12,357,378)
4,750,000 4,750,000
10,726,102 - - 10,726,102
15,476,102 - - 15,476,102
3,118,724 - - 3,118,724
(569,834) - - (569,834)
2,548,890 S - S - S 2,548,890

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds S 3,118,724

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures; in the statement of activities these
costs are allocated over their estimated useful

lives as a provision for depreciation and amortization.

Expenditures for capital assets S 10,955,270
Less: provision for depreciation and amortization (2,824,488) 8,130,782

Debt proceeds and other financing sources provide
current financial resources of governmental funds,
while the repayment of the related debt principal
consumes those financial resources. These
transactions, however, have no effect on net position
in the current period

Issuance of debt S  (4,750,000)

Issuance of leases (10,726,102)

Principal payments on debt 561,963

Principal payments on leases 2,029,910 (12,884,229)
Change in Net Position (Deficit) on the Statement of Activities S (1,634,723)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

13



IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Organization and Operations

IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff (collectively, the “Schools”) are divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc. (the
“Organization”). The Schools commenced operations in August 2022 and offer classes for pre-
kindergarten through 8t grade students in Duval County, Florida. An average of approximately 690
students were enrolled in classes for the Schools year ended in June 2023.

The basic financial statements of the Schools present only the balances, activity and disclosures
related to the Schools. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
IDEA Florida, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position or budgetary
comparisons, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting entity: The Schools operate under a charter granted by the sponsoring Schools’ district,
the Schools’ Board of Duval County, Florida (the “Schools’ Board”). The charters are effective until
July 30, 2027. At the end of the term of the charter, the Schools’ Board may choose not to renew
the charters under grounds specified in the charter in which case the Schools’ Board is required to
notify the Schools in writing at least ninety days prior to the charter's expiration. During the term of
the charter, the Schools’ Board may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown.

Component units: The Schools may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on the Schools regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected
governing board, a governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly approved
board. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the Schools are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As a result of evaluating the above
criteria, management has determined that no component units exist for which the Schools are
financially accountable which would require inclusion in the Schools’ financial statements.

Basis of presentation: Based on the guidance presented in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide — Not-for-Profit Organizations and provisions of
Section 228.056(9), Florida Statutes, the Schools are presented as a governmental organization for
financial statement reporting purposes.

Government-wide financial statements: Government-wide financial statements, including the
statement of net position and the statement of activities, present information about the Schools as
a whole.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function or program of the Schools’ governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are thereby
clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the
program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the Schools.

This government-wide focus is more on the ability to sustain the Schools as an entity and the
change in the Schools’ net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund financial statements: Fund financial statements report detailed information about the
Schools in the governmental funds. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on
major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is reported in a separate
column. Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs from the focus of
government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the
governmental fund financial statements.

The Schools report the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund — This fund is used to account for all operating activities of the
Schools except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for federal grants that
are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

e Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for state capital outlay
funding that is legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Net position: Net position is classified in three categories. The general meaning of each is as
follows:

e Net investment in capital assets - represents the difference between the cost
of capital assets, less accumulated depreciation and amortization reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets (if any).

e Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on
their use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted - indicates that portion of net position that will need to be
funded by future operations.

Fund balance: The Schools have implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides more clearly
defined fund balance classifications to report on the nature and extent to which the Schools are
bound to have constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be
spent.

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

e Nonspendable fund balance — consists of amounts that are not in spendable
form and of net position that are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

e Restricted fund balance — consists of amounts with constraints placed on
their use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

e Committed fund balance — consists of amounts that can be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the government itself, using its
highest level of decision making authority.

e Assigned fund balance — consists of amounts that are constrained by the
government’s intended use of resources but are neither restricted or
committed.

e Unassigned — consists of net resources in excess of what can be properly
classified in one of the above categories.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the Schools consider restricted funds to have been spent first. When
expenditures are incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the Schools consider amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Schools’ governing body or its
delegated official or body has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. The
details of the fund balances are included in the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: The basis of accounting refers to the point at which
revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement
focus applied. Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and
the government-wide statement uses the economic resources measurement focus.

Governmental activity in the government-wide financial statements is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting under which revenue is recognized in the accounting period in which it becomes
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when it becomes both measurable and available). "Measurable"
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the current period is defined as sixty days.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents are defined as demand deposits, money
market accounts, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

Prepaid items: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting period
and are recorded as prepaid items.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired are capitalized at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Capital assets are defined by the Schools as assets with a cost of S 1,000 or more
and a useful life of over one year. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other expenditures that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives
of the related capital assets. Other costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the capital
assets estimated useful lives as follows:

Building — right of use 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Right of use asset: The Schools have recorded a right of use lease asset as a result of implementing
GASB 87. The right of use asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement
of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease
incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right of use
asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

Compensated absences: The Schools’ policy allows employees to carry over unused vacation
time during the year. Unused sick leave benefits are not paid upon separation from service. No
liability for compensated absences was recorded for the year ending June 30, 2023 because
management of the Schools has considered the amount to be immaterial.

Unearned revenue: Unearned revenue arises when the Schools receive inflows of resources that
do not meet the criteria for revenue recognition. At June 30, 2023, the Schools had unearned
revenue of S 95, which represented referendum funds not yet earned.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The Schools do not have any items that qualify for reporting in
this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Schools have not recorded
any deferred inflows as of June 30, 2023.

Revenue recognition: Student funding is provided by the State of Florida through the District and
the Florida State Department of Education. Such funding is recorded as entitlement revenue in
the government-wide financial statements and state source revenue in the fund financial
statements. This funding is received on a pro rata basis over a twelve-month period and is
adjusted for changes in full-time equivalent (FTE) student population.

Grant and contract revenue: Grant and contract revenue is recognized when the allowable costs,
as defined by the individual grant or contract, are incurred.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Income taxes: The Schools are a division of a nonprofit corporation that qualifies as a tax-exempt
organization under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3), and is, therefore, exempt from
income tax. Accordingly, no tax provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements.

Date of management review: Subsequent events were evaluated by management through
September 28, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Schools use a pooled cash method of accounting as part of the IDEA Florida, Inc. (the
“Organization”). At June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the deposits and cash on hand totaled
$ 3,716,207 with a pooled bank balance of $9,174,422, which includes the balances of the
Organization.

State statutes require, and it is the Schools’ policy, that all deposits be made into, and be held by,
financial institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as “qualified public
depositories” as defined by Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes. This Statute requires that every
qualified public depository institution maintain eligible collateral to secure the public entity’s
funds. The minimum collateral to be pledged by an institution, the collateral eligible for pledge,
and the reporting requirements of the qualified public depositor to the Treasurer is defined by
statute. Collateral is pooled in a multiple qualified public depository institution pool with the
ability to assess members of the pool should need arise. The Schools’ deposits are held in a
qualified public depository and are covered by the collateral pool because the Schools has
identified itself as a public entity.

Note 4 - Budgets

The Schools formally adopted budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds by function for
the year ended June 30, 2023. The budgets have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. A comparison of actual results of
operations to the budgeted amounts for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund are
presented as required supplementary information.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund by
approximately S 1.2 million. These over expenditures where mainly caused by the Schools not
budgeting for the capital outlay expenditures, which were mostly offset by lease issuances as well
as cost savings in operations.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 5 - Due from Government Agencies
Due from government agencies at June 30, 2023 consists primarily of amounts due from the
District for capital outlay and from the Department of Education for Elementary and Secondary
Emergency Assistance Grants (ESSER).

Note 6 - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental capital assets is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30,
2022 Additions Retirements 2023
Capital assets not being
depreciated/amortized:
Construction in progress S 29,621 S 122,744 S - S 152,365
Total capital assets not being
depreciated/amortized 29,621 122,744 - 152,365
Capital assets being depreciated/
amortized:
Intangible right of use:
Building 99,185 10,439,725 (99,185) 10,439,725
Office equipment - 286,377 - 286,377
Furniture and equipment - 205,609 - 205,609
Vehicles 1,802,576 - - 1,802,576
Total capital assets being
depreciated/amortized 1,901,761 10,931,711 (99,185) 12,734,287
Accumulated depreciation/
amortization:
Intangible right of use:
Building 48,356 2,456,269 (94,852) 2,409,773
Office equipment - 70,800 - 70,800
Furniture and equipment - 31,756 - 31,756
Vehicles 35,856 360,515 - 396,371
Total accumulated
depreciation/amortization 84,212 2,919,340 (94,852) 2,908,700
Net capital assets S 1,847,170 S 8,135,115 S (4,333) S 9,977,952

The provision for depreciation and amortization for the year ended June 30, 2023 amounted to
$2,919,340. The Schools allocated 2% of the depreciation to general and admin, 12% to
transportation, and 86% to the operation of the facility.

As part of the Schools’ charter contract, all capital assets purchased with public funds will
automatically revert to the District upon the non-renewal or termination of this contract.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 7 - Line of Credit

In 2023, the Schools entered into a $ 10 million line of credit agreement with Charter Asset
Management to provide working capital to Idea Florida, Inc. The line has a maturity of August 31,
2024, and each advance will bear an interest rate equal to the Prime Rate plus 3.20%. As of June
30, 2023, the line of credit had an outstanding balance of $ 4.75 million. The line of credit also
contains various financial covenants of which the Organization is in compliance.

Note 8 - Debt

Debt activity as of June 30, 2023, consists of the following:

Balance at Balance at Due
July 1, June 30, Within
2022 Additions Retirements 2023 One Year
Line of credit S - $ 4,750,000 g - $ 4,750,000 S -
CFNF Note payable 1,200,000 - 561,963 638,037 638,037

$_1,200,000 S_4,750,000 S 561,963 $_5388037 S 638,037

CFNF Note Payable: Previously, the Schools entered into a loan agreement for $ 1,200,000 to
provide funding to open the schools located in Jacksonville, Florida. The note bears an interest
rate of 2.00% per annum and will mature on April 30, 2024. Monthly interest only payments of
$ 2,000 were due through September 1, 2022, at which time monthly payments of $ 58,196
began and continue through maturity.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 638,037 S 6,356 S 644,393
Thereafter - - -

S 638,037 S 6,356 S 644,393

Note 9 - Leases

During the year, the Schools occupied their locations activating their facility leases effective
through June 30, 2026. In addition, they entered into several other equipment leases for
operations. The lease agreements qualify as other than short-term leases under GASB 87 and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of
the implementation date of July 1, 2022. The discount rate used to recognize the intangible right
of use asset and the lease liability was 5.00%. Payments are due monthly of approximately
$ 264,500 for 2024.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 9 - Leases (continued)

The following is a schedule of the Schools’ future base rent payments as of June 30, 2023:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 2,816,830 S 356,772 S 3,173,602
2025 2,920,173 215,342 3,135,515
2026 3,010,019 68,447 3,078,466
Thereafter - - -
S 8,747,022 S 640,561 S 9,387,583

The lease activity of the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Amount
July 1, June 30, Due Within
2022 Additions Retirements 2023 One Year
Leases:
Building $ 50,830 § 10,439,725 $ 1,959,110 $ 8,531,445 S 2,735,426
Equipment - 286,377 70,800 215,577 81,404
Leases - building and
equipment S 50,830 ¢§ 10,726,102 § 2,029,910 ¢ 8,747,022 & 2,816,830

Note 10 - Contingencies and Commitments

Grant agreements: The Schools, as a department of the Organization, received financial
assistance from Federal and local governmental agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements and may be subject to audit by the grantor agencies. In
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
the Organization is required to conduct “single audits” when either the threshold for federal
awards or state financial assistance exceeds $ 750,000. The federal threshold is exceeded for the
Organization, and as a result, the Organization is in the process of completing this requirement.

Management Agreement: The Organization entered into a management services agreement with
IPS Enterprises, Inc. (“IPS”) effective January 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2026. The agreement is
automatically renewed concurrently with the renewal of any charter schools contract entered
into by the Organization. The agreement also applies to any new charter schools performance-
based agreements entered into by the Organization.

The agreement provides the Organization with the authority to manage, administer, oversee and
supervise all the operations and activities of the charter schools. For the services rendered, IPS will
charge 15% of all revenues received by the Schools, exclusive of those received from the “Schools
of Hope Program”. No management fees were charged to the Schools for the year ended June 30,
2023. In addition, the Schools have a balance due from the IPS of approximately S 266,700
representing temporary amounts due for various transactions consummated on the Schools’
behalf.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 11 - Capital Appropriations Funding

The Florida Department of Education has approved a Charter School Capital Outlay (CSCO) award
for the Schools. In each year that funds are appropriated by the State for charter school capital
outlay purposes, those funds are allocated among eligible charter schools. The funds for the
Schools’ allocation are transferred to the Schools once a CSCO Plan has been provided to and
approved by the sponsoring district. The Schools’ CSCO Award totaled $ 374,044 for the
2022/2023 school year, which has been recognized as revenue in the accompanying basic
financial statements. If the CSCO funds are used to acquire tangible property assets, the School
Board has a reversionary interest in those assets. In the even of nonrenewal, termination or
breach of the charter school agreement, ownership of the assets would automatically revert to
the School Board. The Schools have elected to use these funds to pay for a portion of the
operation of plant expenses.

Note 12 - Risk Financing

The Schools are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets and natural disasters. The Schools have obtained property insurance from
commercial companies including, but not limited to, general liability and errors and omissions
insurance. There have been no claims in excess of insurance coverage limits during the current
year.
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IDEA Basset and IDEA River Bluff

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:

State sources
Local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Regular instruction
Student support services
Instruction related technology
Staff training

General and administrative
services
Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation services
Fiscal services

Community services
Food services

Central services
Professional services

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Debt proceeds
Lease proceeds

Net change in fund balance

$

S

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual Variance
22,667,278 S 18,778,164 S 17,592,701 S (1,185,463)
- 2,956 3,474 518
22,667,278 18,781,120 17,596,175 (1,184,945)
10,999,355 8,955,603 6,569,679 2,385,924
856,244 1,147,990 609,363 538,627
408,090 524,668 241,669 282,999
24,306 33,523 3,305 30,218
6,912,835 8,457,628 6,220,395 2,237,233
2,949,049 4,186,088 968,585 3,217,503
1,282,899 1,872,983 502,553 1,370,430
81,508 287,183 299,777 (12,594)
39,394 43,237 28,474 14,763
1,564,772 1,533,996 264,784 1,269,212
1,500 5,320 4,320 1,000
- - 183,874 (183,874)
- - 10,955,270 (10,955,270)
2,385,854 1,692,411 2,591,873 (899,462)
- - 509,632 (509,632)
27,505,806 28,740,630 29,953,553 (1,212,923)
(4,838,528) (9,959,510) (12,357,378) (2,397,868)
- - 4,750,000 4,750,000
- - 10,726,102 10,726,102
(4,838,528) (9,959,510) 3,118,724 S 13,078,234
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IDEA Basset and IDEA River Bluff
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
National School Lunch
and Breakfast Programs S 4,562,604 § 1,205,230 § 606,279 S (598,951)
ESSER 1,469,527 3,196,787 1,199,152 (1,997,635)
Other federal grants - 758,260 439,127 (319,133)
Total revenues 6,032,131 5,160,277 2,244,558 (2,915,719)
Expenditures:
Regular Instruction - - 326,286 (326,286)
Student support services - - 218,374 (218,374)
Instruction related technology - - 52,353 (52,353)
General and administrative - 831,510 130,055 701,455
Plant operations
and maintenance - - 69,873 (69,873)
Transportation - - 505,844 (505,844)
Food services 88,751 3,219 941,773 (938,554)
Total expenditures 88,751 834,729 2,244,558 (1,409,829)
Net change in fund balance S 5943380 § 4,325548 § - S (4,325,548)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and each major fund of IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff (collectively, the “Schools”),
divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Schools’ basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Schools’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Schools’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Reporting on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Schools’ financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Schools’ internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Schools’ internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff (collectively the
“Schools”), divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and have issued
our report thereon dated September 28, 2023.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor
General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in that report, which is dated
September 28, 2023, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. Since this is the initial year of operations, there were no
recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5, Rules of the Auditor General, requires the name or official title of the entity and
the Schools’ code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in this management
letter. The official titles and School codes assigned by the Florida Department of Education of the
Schools, respectively, are IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff and 165931 and 165951.
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IDEA Bassett and IDEA River Bluff

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate whether or not the Schools have met one or more of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Schools did not meet any of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the Schools. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the Schools’ financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7. and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the Schools maintain on
their website the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with
our audit, we determined that the Schools maintained on their website the information specified in
Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors and applicable

management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Florida, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDEA Florida, Inc. (a non-profit
organization) (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed further in Note 11 to the financial statements, the Organization was the sole member of
an LLC, IPS Florida, LLC, which was formed in May 2022 and subsequently transferred to another not-
for-profit entity. None of the activities of the LLC have been included in these financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Governmental Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governmental
Auditing Standards, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

° Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements.



IDEA Florida, Inc.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2023, on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
October 27, 2023
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and awards receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets
Due from management company
Property and equipment, net
Right of use, net
Deposits

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue and refundable advances
Current portion of operating lease liability
Debt - due in one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Operating lease liability, net of current portion
Debt - due in in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Assets (Deficit):
Without Donor Restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

s

9,027,060

1,869,655

10,896,715

5,028,744
2,887,108
19,296,469

128,821
27,341,142

38,237,857

4,485,541
1,612,766
1,960,166
6,289,195

638,037

14,985,705

13,370,311

9,500,000
22,870,311

37,856,016

(1,142,813)

1,524,654
381,841

38,237,857

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:
Operating revenue and public support:
Government grants and awards
Contributions
Net assets released from restriction
Other

Total operating revenues, public support and
net assets released from restrictions

Expenses:
Program services:
Education
Supporting services:
Management and general
Total expenses
Change in net assets without donor restrictions
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:
Contributions and awards
Net assets released from restrictions
Change in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in net assets

Net Assets, July 1, 2022

Net Assets, June 30, 2023

50,545,048
528,000
150,720

30,557

51,254,325

42,792,064

8,701,656
51,493,720

(239,395)

655,961

(150,720)

505,241

265,846

115,995

381,841

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Contracted services

Rentals

Office expenses and other
Program services and supplies
Interest and other fiscal charges
Insurance

Salaries

Depreciation

Taxes - other

Utilities

Travel

Repairs and maintenance
Legal and professional services
Telecommunications
Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Employee retirement
Professional development
Information and Tech

Dues and subscriptions

Total expenses

Management

Education and General Total
S 27,673,431 S 5,277,605 S 32,951,036
5,898,611 598,910 6,497,521
3,247,935 473,977 3,721,912
1,962,173 64,525 2,026,698
- 1,142,522 1,142,522
1,042,048 - 1,042,048
883,355 - 883,355
694,420 58,371 752,791
- 716,594 716,594
546,131 - 546,131
263,810 122,993 386,803
282,206 - 282,206
79,558 163,367 242,925
24,716 62,510 87,226
81,524 - 81,524
52,491 - 52,491
34,955 - 34,955
24,700 - 24,700
- 18,386 18,386
- 1,896 1,896
S 42,792,064 S 8,701,656 S 51,493,720

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Provision for depreciation
Amortization of operating lese right-of-use asset
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Grants and awards receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Due from management company
(Increase) decrease in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to management company
Deferred revenue
Operating lease liability

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from debt
Principal payments on debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2023

s

$

265,846

752,791
5,887,351

(1,185,573)
81,468
(101,743)
(5,028,744)

3,407,012

897,170
(248,143)

472,166

(5,363,349)

(163,748)

(328,355)

(328,355)

9,500,000

(561,963)

8,938,037

8,445,934

581,126

9,027,060

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Organization and Operations

IDEA Florida, Inc., (“Organization”) is a not-for-profit corporation organized pursuant to Chapter
617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation Act, and Section 228.056, Florida
Statutes. The Organization was established in 2019 and commenced operations in 2021
establishing charter schools in Tampa and Jacksonville.

The Organization receives funding from the State of Florida and from the School Boards of
Hillsborough County and Duval County, Florida (collectively the “School Boards”) based on student
population. The Organization may also receive other revenues, including grants, contributions,
food service revenues, and community service revenues.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in
the accounts and reported on the financial statements. The financial statements of the
Organization are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Basis of presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Accounting Standards Update (FASB ASU) 2016-14 Not-
for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Under
FASB ASU 2020-07, the Reporting Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor
restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2023, the Organization had assets
with donor restrictions (Note 8).

Net assets: Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:

° Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in
general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor)
restrictions.

° Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor (or
certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other
events specified by the donor or grantor. Other restrictions are perpetual
in nature, where the donor or grantor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Contributions restricted by donors are
reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the
restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the
revenue is recognhized. All other donor-restricted contributions are
reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on
the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

All contributions are considered available for general use, unless specifically restricted by the donor
or subject to other legal restrictions. All restricted contributions received and expended are for the
operations of the Schools.

Reporting Organization: The Organization’s Schools operate under charters granted by their
sponsoring School Board. The charters normally run for a five year period.

Charters may be renewed by mutual written agreement between the individual School and the
School Board. At the end of the term of the charter, the School Board may choose not to renew
the charter under grounds specified in the charter, in which case the School Board is required to
notify the School in writing at least ninety days prior to the charter’s expiration. During the term of
the charter, the School Board may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown.

Cash and cash equivalents: The Organization considers all demand accounts and money market
funds which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions to be cash and cash equivalents. The
Organization routinely maintains cash balances at financial institutions which exceed federally
insured amounts. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk.

State statutes require, and it is the Schools’ policy, that all deposits be made into, and be held by,
financial institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as qualified public
depositories as defined by Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes. This statute requires that every
qualified public depository institution maintain eligible collateral to secure the public
Organization’s funds. The minimum collateral to be pledged by an institution, the collateral eligible
for pledge, and reporting requirements of the qualified public depositor to the treasurer is defined
by the statute. Collateral is pooled in a multiple qualified public depository institution pool with
the ability to assess members of the pool should the need arise. The Schools’ deposits are held in a
gualified public depository. They are covered by the collateral pool as the Schools have identified
themselves as public entities at June 30, 2023.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents: At June 30, 2023, the Organization maintains cash balances
that are restricted for designated donor purposes and included in cash and cash equivalents on the
accompanying statement of financial position.

Promises to give: The Organization records unconditional promises to give that are expected to be
collected within one year at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value techniques using
risk-adjusted discount rates. In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in
contribution revenue in the statement of activities.

Prepaid expenses: Certain payments reflect costs applicable to services for a future accounting
period and are recorded as prepaid expenses in the accompanying financial statements.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment purchased or acquired are capitalized at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of
at least $ 5,000 and a useful life of over one year. Donated property and equipment assets are
valued at the estimated fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and
other major renewals that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related assets. Other costs incurred for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

9



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

If donors stipulate the period of time during which the assets must be used, the contributions are
recorded as support with donor restrictions, and released as restrictions expire. In the absence of
such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment and gifts of cash restricted for the
acquisition of property and equipment, are recorded as support without donor restrictions when
the assets are placed in service.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as

follows:
Computer software 3 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Right of use assets: The Organization has recorded right of use lease assets as a result of
implementing the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Standards Update 2016-02,
Leases (Topic 842). The right of use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term,
less lease incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right
of use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

Revenue and revenue recognition: The Organization recognizes contributions when cash,
securities, other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is
received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have
been substantially met or explicitly waived.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursement federal and state
contracts, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses, is recognized when such expenditures are incurred in compliance
with specific contract provisions.

Amounts received prior to meeting certain conditions, including measurable performance or other
barrier, and/or incurring qualifying expenditures in compliance with the specific grant or contract
are reported as a liability, refundable advances, in the statement of financial position.

Student funding is provided by the State of Florida through the School Boards. This funding is
received on a pro rata basis over a twelve-month period and is adjusted for changes in full-time
equivalent (FTE) student population.

Deferred revenue: Revenues received in advance from other income that are considered exchange
transactions are deferred to the applicable period.

Functional allocation of expenses: The costs of providing the programs and activities of the
Organization have been summarized on a functional basis in the accompanying statement of
functional expenses. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification
detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited

10



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingencies at the date of financial statements and revenues and expenses recognized during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Date of management’s review: Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 27,
2023, which is the date the financial statements were issued.

Note 3 - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets
Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the

following:

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S 9,027,060
Due from other agencies 1,869,655
Financial assets at year-end 10,896,715

Less those unavailable for general
expenditures within one year, due to:
Contractual or donor imposed restrictions 1,524,654

Financial assets available within
one year to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within on year S 9,372,061

Note 4 — Property, Equipment and Right of Use Assets

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2023:

Intangible right of use buildings S 26,261,772
Construction in progress 152,365
Furniture and equipment 253,712
Vehicles 3,538,438

30,206,287
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization (8,022,710)

Net property and equipment
and right of use assets S 22,183,577
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 4 - Property, Equipment and Right of Use Assets (continued)

If certain governmental funding is used to acquire tangible property assets, the School Board has a
reversionary interest in those assets. In the event of nonrenewal, termination, or breach of the
charter school agreement, ownership of the assets would automatically revert to the School Board.

Note 5 — Line of Credit Debt

In 2023, the Organization entered into a $ 10 million line of credit agreement with Charter Asset
Management to provide working capital. The line has a maturity of August 31, 2024, and each
advance will bear an interest rate equal to the Prime Rate plus 3.20%. As of June 30, 2023, the line
of credit had an outstanding balance of $9.5 million. The line of credit also contains various
financial covenants of which the Organization is in compliance.

Note 6 - Debt

Previously, the Organization entered into an agreement to borrow $ 1,200,000 to provide for
startup costs to establish two of the Organization’s campuses in Jacksonville, Florida. The loan
incurs interest at 2% and requires monthly interest only payments through August 2022 where the
monthly payment increases to a principal and interest payment of approximately $ 58,200 until the
loan is due in full May 2024.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 638,037 S 22,000 S 660,037
Thereafter - - -
Total S 638,037 S 22,000 S 660,037

Note 7 — Leases

The Organization entered into several operating leases during the year primarily for their schools’
facility operations The leases are effective through June 30, 2026. The lease agreements qualify
as other than short-term leases under Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting
Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) and, therefore, have been recorded at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments. The discount rate used to recognize the intangible
right of use asset and the lease liability was 5.17%. Payments are due monthly of approximately
$ 592,000 for 2023 and at slightly lower amounts through to the expiration of the leases.

12



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 7 — Leases (continued)

Future lease payment obligations are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 6,289,195 S 817,126 s 7,106,321
2025 6,533,067 495,669 7,028,736
2026 6,837,244 158,708 6,995,952
Thereafter - - -
Total $ 19,659,506 $ 1,471,503 $ 21,131,009

Note 8 — Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of cash and are available for the following:

Start up operations - Lakeland S 1,487,500
Educational expenses 37 154

S 1,524,654
Additionally, net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses as follows:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Start up operations and establishment - Lakeland S 112,500
Other educational expenses 38,220
S 150,720

Note 9 — Management Services Agreement

The Organization entered into a management services agreement with IPS Enterprises, Inc. (“IPS”)
effective January 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2026. The agreement is automatically renewed
concurrently with the renewal of any charter school contract entered into by the Organization. The
agreement also applies to any new charter school performance-based agreements entered into by
the Organization.

The agreement provides the Organization with the authority to manage, administer, oversee and
supervise all the operations and activities of the charter schools. For the services rendered, IPS will
charge 15% of all revenues received by the Organization, exclusive of those received from the
“School of Hope Program”. The management fee for the year ended June 30, 2023 was
$2,141,061.

In connection with various transactions involving the operations of the schools, IPS typically
advances monies, receives monies and consummates other transaction on behalf of the
Organization. As a result of these various activities, the Organization is due approximately
$ 5,029,000.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

Note 10 - Income Taxes

The Organization is a nonprofit corporation that qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3), and is, therefore, exempt from income tax. Accordingly,

no tax provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Note 11 — Emphasis of Matter

The Organization was the sole member of an LLC, IPS Florida, LLC, which was formed in May 2022
and subsequently transferred to another entity, IPS Enterprises, Inc. The LLC was initially formed
under the Organization until the intended not-for-profit entity had been properly established.

None of the activities of the LLC have been included in these financial statements.

Note 12 - Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Summarized cash flow information is as follows:

Cash paid during the year for -
Interest expense

Other Noncash Investing Activities and
Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Property and Equipment -
Cost of property and equipment
including right of use leases
Less: financed property and equipment

Cash paid for property and equipment

Issuance of debt and right of use liabilities-
New debt issued including
lease liabilities for right of use assets
Less: debt used for property and equipment
including right of use leases

Cash debt proceeds
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Transfers to
Subrecipients

Assistance
Listing Contract/
Federal Agency/Federal Program Number Grant Number Expenditures
Federal Agency Name:
Indirect Programs:
U.S. Department of Education -
Passed through Florida Department
of Education -
Elementary and Secondary Emergency
Relief Fund (ESSER) Il **  84.425D 99H-1211E-1CRO1 1,562,085
Elementary and Secondary Emergency
Relief Fund (ESSER) IlI ** 84.425U 99H-1211A-2C001 1,489,061
Subtotal - ESSER 3,051,146
Title | Grants to local Educational Agencies 84.010A 99H-2123B-3CB0O1 926,807
Title Il Grants to local Educational Agencies 84.365A 99H-1023B-3C001 19,343
IDEA Part B, K-12 Entitlement (Special
Education Cluster) 84.027A 99H-2633B-3CB01 130,858
U.S. Department of Education Total 4,128,154
U.S. Department of Agriculture -
Passed through Florida Department
of Agriculture
Supply Chain Assistance Funding 10.555 - -
National School Lunch Program 10.555 - 1,379,984
School Breakfast Program 10.553 - 597,955
Supper Revenue 10.553 - 246,787
U.S. Department of Agriculture and Child
Nutrition Cluster Total 2,224,726
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 6,352,880

** Denotes COVID-19 funding

See notes to schedule if expenditures of federal awards.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2023

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
Federal grant activity of the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in the
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, change in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, as
well as other applicable provisions of contracts and grant agreements, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements, as applicable.

Note 3 — Indirect Cost Rate

The Organization did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Note 4 — Contingency

The grant and contract revenue amounts received are subject to audit and adjustment. If any
expenditures or expenses are disallowed by the grantor agencies as a result of such an audit, any
claim for reimbursement to the grantor/contract agencies would become a liability of the
Organization. In the opinion of management, all grant and contract expenditures are in
compliance with the terms of the agreements and applicable Federal and state laws and other
applicable regulations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Florida, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of IDEA Florida, Inc.
(the “Organization”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2023 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 27, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
October 27, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Florida, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited IDEA Florida, Inc.’s (the “Organization”) (a nonprofit organization) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Organization’s federal programs.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance.
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IDEA Florida, Inc.

Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
October 27, 2023

21



IDEA Florida, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

no

none reported

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major federal program: Unmodified Opinion
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X
Identification of major federal programs:
Assistance
Listing No. Federal Program
84.425 Elementary and Secondary Emergency Relief Fund
84.010 Title | Grants to local Educational Agencies
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

None Reported.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
None Reported.

SECTION IV - PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

None Reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory (the “Schools”), divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Schools’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Schools, as of
June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Schools and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Schools are intended to present the financial
position and change in financial position of only that portion of the governmental activities and each
major fund of IDEA Florida, Inc. that is attributable to the transactions of the Schools. They do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of IDEA Florida, Inc. as of June 30, 2023 and
the changes in its financial position and budgetary comparisons, where applicable, for the year ended
June 30, 2023 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Special
Revenue Fund on pages 4 through 7 and 22 through 23, respectively, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
28, 2023, on our consideration of the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Our discussion and analysis of IDEA Hope’s and IDEA Victory’s (the “Schools”) financial performance
provides an overview of the Schools’ financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2023 with
certain comparative information for 2022. Please read this section in conjunction with the Schools’
financial statements, which immediately follow this discussion.

Financial Highlights
The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended June 30, 2023:

e The Schools’ total assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2023 by $ 504,601 (net position),
compared to a deficit of $ (871,622) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

e The Schools’ total revenues were $ 30,905,900 primarily consisting of S 25,980,897 from
general revenues including FTE revenues and state money from the Department of
Education and $ 4,925,003 from operating grants, capital grants, and contributions. The
Schools’ expenses for the year were $ 29,529,677. Net position for the year increased by
$1,376,223.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Schools’ basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements.
This report also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements:

The government-wide financial statements, which consist of the following two statements, are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Schools’ finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business:

e The statement of net position presents information on all the Schools’ assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Schools are improving or deteriorating.

e The statement of activities presents information showing how the Schools’ net position
changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements include all governmental activities that are principally
supported by grants and entitlements from the state for full-time equivalent funding. The Schools
do not have any business-type activities. The governmental activities of the Schools primarily
include instruction and instructional support services.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this report.
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Fund financial statements:

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Schools only have one category of funds -
governmental funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Schools’ near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Schools’ near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Schools maintain several individual governmental funds. The General Fund, Special Revenue
Fund and Capital Projects Fund are considered to be the Schools’ major funds.

A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budgets.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 of this report.

Notes to basic financial statements:

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to basic financial
statements can be found on pages 14 through 21 of this report.

Other information:

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Schools’ General Fund and Special
Revenue Fund adopted budgets to actual results. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 22 and 23 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued)
The following table reflects the condensed government-wide statements of net position:

IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Net Position (Deficit)

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

Current Assets S 9,563,052 S 281,635
Noncurrent Assets 12,210,475 7,496,467
Total assets 21,773,527 7,778,102
Current Liabilities 9,078,807 5,790,403
Noncurrent Liabilities 12,190,119 2,859,321
Total liabilities 21,268,926 8,649,724

Net Position (deficit):
Net investment in capital assets 1,293,141 1,676,169
Unrestricted (788,540) (2,547,791)
Total net position S 504,601 S (871,622)

A portion of the Schools’ net position reflect its investment in capital assets, less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Schools use these capital assets to provide
services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Schools’ investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt (if any), it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used are classified as restricted assets. As of June 30,
2023, the Schools had no restricted assets.

As reflected below, the net position is showing an increase of $ 1,376,223 for the year ended June
30, 2023 as summarized in the following table:

IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Changes in Net Position

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
Revenues:
General revenues S 25,980,897 $ 18,500,940
Program revenues 4,925,003 2,484,033
Total revenues 30,905,900 20,984,973
Expenses:
Instruction 8,912,226 6,736,722
Instructional support services 15,862,383 13,180,098
Operation of non-instructional
services 4,755,068 3,106,666
Total expenses 29,529,677 23,023,486
Change in net position S 1,376,223 S (2,038,513)
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Financial Analysis of the Schools’ Funds

As noted earlier, the Schools use fund accounting to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The focus of the Schools’ governmental funds
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the Schools’ financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance, if any, may serve as a useful measure of the Schools’ net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The 2022-2023 budget was amended at the end of the fiscal year to update anticipated revenues
and expenditures.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets: The Schools’ investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2023 was $ 12,205,625, net
of accumulated depreciation and amortization. This investment in capital assets is composed of a
right of use building, furniture and equipment and vehicles. A more detailed analysis is provided in
Note 6 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt: At June 30, 2023, the Schools had outstanding debt of $4,750,000. A more
detailed analysis is provided in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors for 2023-2024

Total funding for capital outlay is expected to increase slightly in the next year, along with a new
local tax largely offset by reduced ESSER and philanthropy, in addition to increases in regular FEFP
revenues on a per student basis. Given student enroliment to increase from 1,540 to 1,831 in 2023-
2024 due to rising grade levels, the overall effect will be a significant increase in total FEFP
revenues.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory’
finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to IDEA Florida, Inc. 9321 W.
Sam Houston Parkway South, Houston, TX 77099.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2023

Current Assets:
Cash
Due from government agencies
Due from management company
Other receivables
Prepaid items

Total current assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
Deposits
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues
Leases
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Line of credit
Leases
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Position (Deficit):
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

s

3,715,435
951,085
4,762,925
4,372

129,235

9,563,052

12,205,625
4,850

12,210,475

21,773,527

2,834,102
812,269
1,960,071

3,472,365

9,078,807

4,750,000

7,440,119

12,190,119

21,268,926

1,293,141

(788,540)

504,601

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Governmental
Activities
Program Revenues Net Revenues
Charges Operating Capital (Expenses) and
for Grants and Grants and Change in
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Net Position
Functions/Programs:
Governmental activities:
Regular instruction $ 8,912,226 S - S 637,882 $ - S (8,274,344)
Student support services 730,470 - - - (730,470)
Instruction related technology 130,184 - - (130,184)
Staff training 54,155 - - - (54,155)
General and
administrative services 9,149,804 - 1,851,993 - (7,297,811)
Plant operations -
and maintenance 5,797,770 - - 845,558 (4,952,212)
Transportation 2,017,914 - - - (2,017,914)
Fiscal services 205,839 - - - (205,839)
Community services 15,245 - - - (15,245)
Food services 1,741,139 - 1,589,570 - (151,569)
Central services 42,041 - - - (42,041)
Debt service 100,000 - - - (100,000)
Interest expense 632,890 = - - (632,890)
Total governmental
activities $ 29,529,677 S - $ 4,079,445 S 845,558 (24,604,674)
General revenues:
FTE nonspecific revenues and Schools of Hope Funding 25,418,958
Miscellaneous revenues 561,939
Total general revenues 25,980,897
Change in net position 1,376,223
Net position (Deficit), July 1, 2022, as restated (Note 12) (871,622)
Net position, June 30, 2023 S 504,601

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2023
Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets:
Cash 3,715,435 - - 3,715,435
Due from government agencies 951,085 - - 951,085
Due from management company 4,762,925 - - 4,762,925
Other receivables 4,372 - - 4,372
Prepaid items 129,235 - - 129,235
Deposits 4,850 - - 4,850
Total assets 9,567,902 - - 9,567,902
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,834,102 - - 2,834,102
Accrued liabilities 812,269 - - 812,269
Unearned revenue 1,960,071 - - 1,960,071
Total liabilities 5,606,442 - - 5,606,442
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable for prepaid items
and deposits 134,085 - - 134,085
Unassigned 3,827,375 - - 3,827,375
Total fund balances 3,961,460 - - 3,961,460
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows and fund
9,567,902 - - 9,567,902

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Net Position:

Governmental fund balances:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Liabilities not payable with current available resources
are not reported as fund liabilities in the governmental
fund statements. All liabilities both current and
long-term, are reported in the government-wide

statements.

Debt
Leases

Net Position of Governmental Activities

S 17,319,635

(5,114,010)

$

S

3,961,460

12,205,625

(4,750,000)

(10,912,484)

504,601

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:
State sources
Federal sources
Local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Regular Instruction

Student support services
Instruction related technology
Staff training

General and

administrative services

Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation
Fiscal services

Community services
Food services

Central services
Professional services

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal payments on leases
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Debt proceeds
Lease proceeds

Total other financing sources

Net changes in
fund balances

Fund Balances (Deficit), July 1, 2022
Fund Balances, June 30, 2023

$

s

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Fund Fund Fund Total
25,418,958 § - 845,558 § 26,264,516
- 4,079,445 - 4,079,445
561,939 - - 561,939
25,980,897 4,079,445 845,558 30,905,900
8,449,719 462,507 - 8,912,226
642,126 88,344 - 730,470
130,184 - - 130,184
54,155 - - 54,155
8,659,660 481,026 - 9,140,686
1,200,702 393,544 845,558 2,439,804
755,647 924,211 - 1,679,858
205,839 - - 205,839
15,245 - - 15,245
- 1,729,813 - 1,729,813
42,041 - - 42,041
100,000 - - 100,000
8,431,474 - - 8,431,474
3,333,439 - - 3,333,439
632,890 - - 632,890
32,653,121 4,079,445 845,558 37,578,124
(6,672,224) - - (6,672,224)
4,750,000 4,750,000
8,431,475 - - 8,431,475
13,181,475 - - 13,181,475
6,509,251 - - 6,509,251
(2,547,791) - - (2,547,791)
3,961,460 § - - S 3,961,460

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures; in the statement of activities these
costs are allocated over their estimated useful

lives as a provision for depreciation and amortization.

Expenditures for capital assets S 8,431,474

Less: provision for depreciation and amortization (3,716,466)

Debt proceeds and other financing sources provide
current financial resources of governmental funds
while the repayment of the related debt principal
consumes those financial resources.

Issuance of debt S  (4,750,000)
Issuance of leases (8,431,475)

Principal payments on leases 3,333,439

S

6,509,251

4,715,008

(9,848,036)

Change in Net Position on the Statement of Activities

S

1,376,223

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Organization and Operations

IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory (collectively, the “Schools”), are divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc. (the
“Organization”). The Schools commenced operations in July 2021 and offer classes for pre-
kindergarten through 8" grade students in Hillsborough County, Florida. An average of
approximately 1,600 students were enrolled in classes for the Schools year ended in June 2023.

The basic financial statements of the Schools present only the balances, activity and disclosures
related to the Schools. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
IDEA Florida, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position or budgetary
comparisons, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting entity: The Schools operate under a charter granted by the sponsoring Schools’ district,
the Schools’ Board of Hillsborough County, Florida (the “Schools’ Board”). The charters are
effective until June 30, 2026. At the end of the term of the charter, the Schools’ Board may choose
not to renew the charters under grounds specified in the charter in which case the Schools’ Board
is required to notify the Schools in writing at least ninety days prior to the charter's expiration.
During the term of the charter, the Schools’ Board may also terminate the charter if good cause is
shown.

Component units: The Schools may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on the Schools regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected
governing board, a governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly approved
board. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the Schools are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As a result of evaluating the above
criteria, management has determined that no component units exist for which the Schools are
financially accountable which would require inclusion in the Schools’ financial statements.

Basis of presentation: Based on the guidance presented in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide — Not-for-Profit Organizations and provisions of
Section 228.056(9), Florida Statutes, the Schools are presented as a governmental organization for
financial statement reporting purposes.

Government-wide financial statements: Government-wide financial statements, including the
statement of net position and the statement of activities, present information about the Schools as
a whole.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function or program of the Schools’ governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are thereby
clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the
program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the Schools.

This government-wide focus is more on the ability to sustain the Schools as an entity and the
change in the Schools’ net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund financial statements: Fund financial statements report detailed information about the
Schools in the governmental funds. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on
major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is reported in a separate
column. Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs from the focus of
government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the
governmental fund financial statements.

The Schools report the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund — This fund is used to account for all operating activities of the
Schools except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for federal grants that
are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

e Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for state capital outlay
funding that is legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Net position: Net position is classified in three categories. The general meaning of each is as
follows:

e Net investment in capital assets - represents the difference between the cost
of capital assets, less accumulated depreciation and amortization reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets (if any).

e Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on
their use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted - indicates that portion of net position that will need to be
funded by future operations.

Fund balance: The Schools have implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides more clearly
defined fund balance classifications to report on the nature and extent to which the Schools are
bound to have constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be
spent.

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

e Nonspendable fund balance — consists of amounts that are not in spendable
form and of net position that are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

e Restricted fund balance — consists of amounts with constraints placed on
their use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

e Committed fund balance — consists of amounts that can be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the government itself, using its
highest level of decision making authority.

e Assigned fund balance — consists of amounts that are constrained by the
government’s intended use of resources but are neither restricted or
committed.

e Unassigned — consists of net resources in excess of what can be properly
classified in one of the above categories.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the Schools consider restricted funds to have been spent first. When
expenditures are incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the Schools consider amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Schools’ governing body or its
delegated official or body has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. The
details of the fund balances are included in the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: The basis of accounting refers to the point at which
revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement
focus applied. Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and
the government-wide statement uses the economic resources measurement focus.

Governmental activity in the government-wide financial statements is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting under which revenue is recognized in the accounting period in which it becomes
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when it becomes both measurable and available). "Measurable"
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the current period is defined as sixty days.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents are defined as demand deposits, money
market accounts, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

Prepaid items: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting period
and are recorded as prepaid items.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired are capitalized at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Capital assets are defined by the Schools as assets with a cost of S 1,000 or more
and a useful life of over one year. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other expenditures that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives
of the related capital assets. Other costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the capital
assets’ estimated useful lives or lease term, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building — right of use 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Right of use asset: The Schools have recorded a right of use lease asset as a result of implementing
GASB 87. The right of use asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement
of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease
incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right of use
asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

Compensated absences: The Schools’ policy allows employees to carry over unused vacation
time during the year. Unused sick leave benefits are not paid upon separation from service. No
liability for compensated absences was recorded for the year ending June 30, 2023 because
management of the Schools considered the amount to be immaterial.

Unearned revenue: Unearned revenue arises when the Schools receive inflows of resources that
do not meet the criteria for revenue recognition. At June 30, 2023, the Schools had unearned
revenue of $ 1,960,071, which represented referendum funds not yet earned.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The Schools do not have any items that qualify for reporting in
this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Schools have not recorded
any deferred inflows as of June 30, 2023.

Revenue recognition: Student funding is provided by the State of Florida through the District and
the Florida State Department of Education. Such funding is recorded as entitlement revenue in
the government-wide financial statements and state source revenue in the fund financial
statements. This funding is received on a pro rata basis over a twelve-month period and is
adjusted for changes in full-time equivalent (FTE) student population.

Grant and contract revenue: Grant and contract revenue is recognized when the allowable costs,
as defined by the individual grant or contract, are incurred.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Income taxes: The Schools are a division of a nonprofit corporation that qualifies as a tax-exempt
organization under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3), and is, therefore, exempt from
income tax. Accordingly, no tax provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements.

Date of management review: Subsequent events were evaluated by management through
September 28, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Schools use a pooled cash method of accounting as part of IDEA Florida, Inc. (the
“Organization”). At June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the deposits and cash on hand totaled
$ 3,715,435, with a pooled bank balance of $9,174,422, which includes the balances of the
Organization.

State statutes require, and it is the Schools’ policy, that all deposits be made into, and be held by,
financial institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as “qualified public
depositories” as defined by Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes. This Statute requires that every
qualified public depository institution maintain eligible collateral to secure the public entity’s
funds. The minimum collateral to be pledged by an institution, the collateral eligible for pledge,
and the reporting requirements of the qualified public depositor to the Treasurer is defined by
statute. Collateral is pooled in a multiple qualified public depository institution pool with the
ability to assess members of the pool should need arise. The Schools’ deposits are held in a
qualified public depository and are covered by the collateral pool because the Schools has
identified itself as a public entity.

Note 4 - Budgets

The Schools formally adopted budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds by function for
the year ended June 30, 2023. The budgets have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. A comparison of actual results of
operations to the budgeted amounts for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund are
presented as required supplementary information.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, certain expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General

Fund and Special Revenue Fund. These over expenditures were mainly caused by the Schools not
budgeting for capital expenditures and certain special revenue activity.
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 5 - Due from Government Agencies
Due from government agencies at June 30, 2023 consists primarily of amounts due from the
District for capital outlay and from the Department of Education for Elementary and Secondary
Emergency Assistance Grants (ESSER).

Note 6 - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental capital assets is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30,
2022 Additions Retirements 2023
Capital assets being depreciated/
amortized:
Intangible right of use:
Building S 6,988,880 S 8,245,229 S - S 15,234,109
Office equipment 115,316 186,245 - 301,561
Furniture and equipment 48,103 - - 48,103
Vehicles 1,735,862 - - 1,735,862
Total capital assets being
depreciated/amortized 8,888,161 8,431,474 - 17,319,635
Accumulated depreciation/
amortization:
Intangible right of use:
Building 1,093,228 3,272,005 - 4,365,233
Office equipment 35,553 83,944 - 119,497
Furniture and equipment 11,662 13,344 - 25,006
Vehicles 257,101 347,173 - 604,274
Total accumulated
depreciation/amortization 1,397,544 3,716,466 - 5,114,010
Net capital assets $_749%0617  $ _4715008 S ___ - 5 _12,205625

The provision for depreciation and amortization for the year ended June 30, 2023 amounted to
$ 3,716,466. The Schools allocated 10% of the depreciation to transportation and 90% to the
operation of the facility.

As part of the Schools’ charter contract, all capital assets purchased with public funds will
automatically revert to the District upon the non-renewal or termination of this contract.

Note 7 - Line of Credit

In 2023, the Schools entered into a S 10 million line of credit agreement with Charter Asset
Management to provide working capital to Idea Florida, Inc. The line has a maturity of August 31,
2024, and each advance will bear an interest rate equal to the Prime Rate plus 3.20%. As of June
30, 2023, the line of credit had an outstanding balance of S 4.75 million. The line of credit also
contains various financial covenants of which the Organization is in compliance.
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Note 8 - Leases

The Schools have entered into facility leases through June 30, 2026. In addition, they entered into
several other equipment leases for operations. The lease agreements qualify as other than short-
term leases under GASB 87 and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments as of the implementation date of July 1, 2021 and subsequently as new
leases are entered into. The discount rate used to recognize the intangible right of use asset and
the lease liability was 5.17%. Payments are due monthly of approximately $ 327,800 for 2024.

The following is a schedule of the Schools’ future base rent payments as of June 30, 2023:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 3,472,365 S 460,354 S 3,932,719
2025 3,612,894 280,327 3,893,221
2026 3,827,225 90,261 3,917,486
Thereafter - - -

S 10,912,484 S 830,942 S 11,743,426

The lease activity of the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Amount
July 1, June 30, Due Within
2022 Additions Retirements 2023 One Year
Leases:
Building $ 5734685 ¢ 8245230 $ 3,249,493 $ 10,730,422 S 3,381,987
Equipment 79,763 186,245 83,946 182,062 90,378
Leases - building and
equipment S 5,814,448 ¢ 8,431,475 § 3,333,439 ¢ 10,912,484 § 3,472,365

Note 9 - Contingencies and Commitments

Grant agreements: The Schools, as a department of the Organization, received financial
assistance from Federal and local governmental agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements and may be subject to audit by the grantor agencies. In
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
the Organization is required to conduct “single audits” when either the threshold for federal
awards or state financial assistance exceeds $ 750,000. The federal threshold is exceeded for the
Organization, and as a result, the Organization is in the process of completing this requirement.

Management Agreement: The Organization entered into a management services agreement with
IPS Enterprises, Inc. (“IPS”) effective January 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2026. The agreement is
automatically renewed concurrently with the renewal of any charter schools contract entered
into by the Organization. The agreement also applies to any new charter schools performance-
based agreements entered into by the Organization.
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Note 9 - Contingencies and Commitments (continued)

The agreement provides the Organization with the authority to manage, administer, oversee and
supervise all the operations and activities of the charter schools. For the services rendered, IPS will
charge 15% of all revenues received by the Schools, exclusive of those received from the “Schools
of Hope Program”. The management fee for the year ended June 30, 2023 was approximately
$2,028,600. In addition, the Schools have a balance due IPS of approximately $ 5,124,200

representing temporary amounts due for various transactions consummated on the Schools’
behalf.

Note 10 - Capital Appropriations Funding

The Florida Department of Education has approved a Charter School Capital Outlay (CSCO) award
for the Schools. In each year that funds are appropriated by the State for charter school capital
outlay purposes, those funds are allocated among eligible charter schools. The funds for the
Schools’ allocation are transferred to the Schools once a CSCO Plan has been provided to and
approved by the sponsoring district. The Schools’ CSCO Award totaled $676,891 for the
2022/2023 school year, which has been recognized as revenue in the accompanying basic
financial statements. If the CSCO funds are used to acquire tangible property assets, the School
Board has a reversionary interest in those assets. In the even of nonrenewal, termination or
breach of the charter school agreement, ownership of the assets would automatically revert to
the School Board. The Schools have elected to use these funds to pay for a portion of the
operation of plant expenses.

Note 11 - Risk Financing

The Schools are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets and natural disasters. The Schools have obtained property insurance from
commercial companies including, but not limited to, general liability and errors and omissions
insurance. There have been no claims in excess of insurance coverage limits during the current
year.

Note 12 - Prior Period Adjustment and Restatement

During 2023, the Schools realized a grant belonging to a different division of the Organization was
recorded in the accounting records of the Schools. These changes were incorporated in the
Schools’ 2023 financial statements and had the following effect on the beginning net position and
fund balance of the governmental activities and government funds, respectively:

Net position, June 30 2022 S 133,187
Adjustments:
Grant receivable (1,004,809)

Restated net position,
June 30, 2022 $ (871,622)
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IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:

State sources
Local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Regular instruction
Student support services
Instruction related technology
Staff training

General and administrative
services
Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation services
Fiscal services

Community services
Food services

Central services
Professional services

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Debt proceeds
Lease proceeds

Net change in fund balance

s

$

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual Variance
29,848,394 S 28,497,822 $ 25418958 S (3,078,864)
1,659,999 1,953,197 561,939 (1,391,258)
31,508,393 30,451,019 25,980,897 (4,470,122)
15,387,721 12,891,527 8,449,719 4,441,808
1,279,789 1,153,558 642,126 511,432
196,779 7,804 130,184 (122,380)
81,827 162,117 54,155 107,962
8,003,285 9,265,624 8,659,660 605,964
2,254,028 2,496,668 1,200,702 1,295,966
2,593,658 2,481,450 755,647 1,725,803
60,855 208,578 205,839 2,739
29,263 45,613 15,245 30,368
1,484,328 2,026,299 - 2,026,299
23,700 24,600 42,041 (17,441)
- - 100,000 (100,000)
- - 8,431,474 (8,431,474)
3,875,253 3,875,253 3,333,439 541,814
- - 632,890 (632,890)
35,270,486 34,639,091 32,653,121 1,985,970
(3,762,093) (4,188,072) (6,672,224) (2,484,152)
- - 4,750,000 4,750,000
- - 8,431,475 8,431,475
(3,762,093) S (4,188,072) S 6,509,251 S 10,697,323
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:
National School Lunch
and Breakfast Programs
ESSER
Other federal grants

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Regular instruction
Student support services
General and administrative
Plant operations
and maintenance
Transportation
Food services

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

s

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
4,707,046 1,831,494 § 1,589,570 § (241,924)
1,924,312 3,107,163 1,851,993 (1,255,170)
2,999,998 1,656,047 637,882 (1,018,165)
9,631,356 6,594,704 4,079,445 (2,515,259)
- - 462,507 (462,507)
- - 88,344 (88,344)
- 831,510 481,026 350,484
- - 393,544 (393,544)
- - 924,211 (924,211)
3,439,790 (194,358) 1,729,813 (1,924,171)
3,439,790 637,152 4,079,445 (3,442,293)
6,191,566 5,957,552 § - S (5,957,552)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and each major fund of IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory (collectively, the “Schools”), divisions of
IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Schools’ basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated September 28, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Schools’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Schools’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Reporting on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Schools’ financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Schools’ internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Schools’ internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To the Board of Directors
IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory (collectively the “Schools”),
divisions of IDEA Florida, Inc., as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 28, 2023.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor
General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in that report, which is dated
September 28, 2023, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5, Rules of the Auditor General, requires the name or official title of the entity and
the Schools’ code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in this management
letter. The official titles and School codes assigned by the Florida Department of Education of the
Schools, respectively, are IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory and 297840 and 297835.
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Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate whether or not the Schools have met one or more of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Schools did not meet any of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the Schools. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the Schools’ financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7. and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the Schools maintain on
their website the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with
our audit, we determined that the Schools maintained on their website the information specified in
Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors and applicable

management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
September 28, 2023
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